
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Scrutiny Review - Support to Carers 

 
 
TUESDAY, 13TH OCTOBER, 2009 at 10:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Adamou (Chair), Alexander, Dodds and Wilson 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  (late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  New items will 
be dealt with at item below). 
 

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 

at which the matter is being considered must disclose to that meeting the existence 
and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent. 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or it it related to the determining of any approval, consent, 
license, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the code of Conduct. 
 

4. CARERS IN HARINGEY    
 



 

2 

 To receive a presentation from Adult, Culture and Community Services on carers 
services. 
 

5. EQUALITIES AND CARERS    
 
 To receive a presentation from Eve Featherstone, Equalities Manager, on equalities 

and carers. 
 

6. SCOPING REPORT  (PAGES 1 - 94)  
 
 To discuss the scope of the review and approve the objective and terms of reference. 

 
7. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member 
Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Research Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2933 
Email: 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.u
k  
 

 
 

5th October 2009 
 



 
 

 

 
 

Agenda item:  
 

 

   [Name of Meeting]                       On [Date] 
 
 

 

Report Title. Scoping report – Scrutiny review on Support to Carers in Haringey 

 

Report of  Cllr Adamou, Chair of the review panel 
 
Signed : 
 

Contact Officer : Melanie Ponomarenko 

Tel: 0208 489 2933 

Email: Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 

 
Wards(s) affected: [All / Some (Specify)] 
 
 
 

Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision] 
 

 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

1.1. For the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to consider and approve the scope and 
terms of reference for the scrutiny review of support to carers in Haringey. 

 

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary) 

2.1.  N/A 
 

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies: 

 
3.1. This review links with the Sustainable Community Strategy Outcomes of: 

•••• Economic vitality shared by all, specifically: 

•••• Maximise income 

•••• Increase skills and educational achievement. 

[No.] 

Agenda Item 6Page 1



 

 2 

•••• Healthier people with a better quality of life, specifically: 

•••• Tackle health inequalities 

•••• Give greater opportunities to live a healthier lifestyle 

•••• Promote independence and provide high quality support and care for those 
in greatest need. 

3.2. This review links with the Council Plan priorities of: 

•••• A Thriving Haringey 

•••• A Caring Haringey 

•••• Driving Change, Improving Quality 
 

3.3. This review links with the following Local Area Agreement: 

•••• NI 135 – Carers receiving needs  assessment or review and a specific care’s 
service, or advice and information 

 

4. Recommendations 

4.1. That the Terms of Reference and scope of the review be agreed. 
 

 
 
5. Reason for recommendation(s) 

5.1. Reasons for the above recommendation are laid out in the main body of this 
report. 

 

 
6. Other options considered 

6.1. N/A 
 
 

 
7. Summary 

7.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee commissioned a task and finish review 
into support for carer as part of its 2009/10 work programme. 

7.2. There is increasing national emphasis on ensuring that carers have appropriate 
support to enable them to have a life of their own alongside their caring role.  This 
is underpinned nationally by the National Carers Strategy and locally by the 
Haringey Adult Carers Strategy and accompanying delivery plan. 

 

8.  Chief Financial Officer Comments 

8.1. TBC 
 

9.  Head of Legal Services Comments 

9.1. TBC 

Page 2



 

 3 

 
 

10.  Head of Procurement Comments –[ Required for Procurement Committee] 

10.1. N/A 
 
 

11.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

11.1. TBC 
 
 

12.  Consultation  

12.1. The review will seek the views of a range of stakeholders (as outlined in the 
main body of the report).  This will include carers. 

 

13.  Service Financial Comments 

13.1. This review will be carried out within the current resources of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Service. 

13.2.  Any financial implications of the final report will be covered within that report. 

 

14.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

•••• Appendix A – Haringey Adult Carers Strategy 2009-2014 

•••• Appendix B – Haringey Adult Carers Strategy Delivery Plan 2009-2012 

•••• Appendix C - Carers personalisation briefing, SCIE and Carers UK 

•••• Appendix D – Carers Grant 2008-2011 Guidance, Department of Health 
 
 

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

• National Carers strategy:  Carers at the heart of 21st Century families and 
communities, Department of Health, 2008 

• Haringey Adult Carers Strategy 2009-2014, Haringey Strategic Partnership, 2009 

• Haringey Adult Carers Strategy Delivery Plan 2009-2011, Haringey Strategic 
Partnership, 2009 

• Comprehensive Area Assessment Framework, Audit Commission, February 2009 

• Our Health, Our Care, Our Say: a new direction for community services, 
Department of Health, 2006 

• Putting People First; a shared vision and commitment to the transformation of 
adult social care, Department of Health, 2007 

Page 3



 

 4 

• Employment support for carers (research report 597), Department for Work and 
Pensions, 2009 

• Local Government Information Unit, Health and Social Care Round up briefing, 
2009 

• Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004, Office of Public Sector Information 

• Work and Families Act 2006, Office of Public Sector Information 

• Commissioning for Carers, Improvement and Development Agency 

• Equalities Bill 2009 

• Supporting Carers to Care, Commons Public Accounts Committee, 2009 

• Haringey Adult Carers Strategy, Equalities Impact Assessment, 2009 

• Haringey Independence, Well-being and Choice, Safeguarding Adults Inspection, 
Care Quality Commission, January 2009 

• High Quality Care, NHS Operating Framework for the NHS in England 2009/10, 
Department of Health, 2008 

• Carers Grant 2008-2011 Guidance, Department of Health, 2008 

• Sustainable Community Strategy, Haringey Strategic Partnership, 2007-2016 

• Council Plan, Haringey Council, 2009-2010 
 

 
 

1. Background 
1.1.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee commissioned a task and finish review 

into the support given to carers in Haringey as part of their 2009/10 work 
programme. 

1.2. This was initially on the work programme for 2008/09 but due to work being 
undertaken on the Haringey Adult Carers Strategy it was felt that the review 
would be able to add more value once this was completed. 

 
2. Local Context  

2.1. Haringey Carers Strategy’s vision is…“that by 2018 carers will have a place in 
“a caring system on your side, a life of your own” and that “carers will be 
universally recognised and valued as being fundamental to strong families and 
stable communities.  Support will be tailored to meet individuals’ needs, 
enabling carers to maintain a balanced between their caring responsibilities and 
a life outside caring, whilst enabling the person they support to be a full and 
able citizen”.1 
1.1. The Strategy has four outcomes and is underpinned by a delivery plan for 

2009-2012 (see Appendix A and B). 
1.2. The four outcomes are as follows: 

• “Outcome 1 - Being respected and supported: Carers will be 
respected as expert care partners and will have access to the 
integrated and personalised services they need to support them in 
their caring role. 

                                            
1
 Haringey Adult Carers Strategy 2009-2014, Haringey Strategic Partnership, 2009 

Page 4



 

 5 

• Outcome 2 – Balancing caring with a life apart from caring: Carers will 
be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role. 

• Outcome 3 – Carers financial security: Carers will be supported so 
that they are not force into financial hardship by their caring role. 

• Outcome 4 – Carers well-being: Carers will be supported to stay 
mentally and physically well and treated with dignity.”2 

2.2. It is estimated that by providing unpaid care, carers in Haringey save the 
borough £236.5 million per year3. 

 

3. Definition of a Carer 
3.1. For the purpose of this review the definition of a carer is taken from the National 

Carers Strategy, this is also the definition used in the Haringey Adult Carers 
Strategy. 

“A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid support to family 
or potentially friends.  This could be caring for a relative, partner or friend who is ill, 
frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems”.4 
 

4. National Context 
4.1. Comprehensive Area Assessment Framework5 document states that scrutiny 

reviews carried out locally will provide valuable evidence that can feed into the 
CAA and may help inspectors understand issues without having to carry out 
additional work.  The three key area assessment questions are as follows: 

 

• How well do local priorities express community needs and aspirations? 

• How well outcomes and improvements needed being delivered? 

•••• What are the prospects for future improvement? 
 

4.2. The National Carers Strategy6 sets out to raise the profile of carers and sets 
out the Governments short and longer term commitment and vision for carers.  
The vision by 2018: 

• carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to the 
integrated and personalised services they need to support them in their 
caring role;  

• carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role;  

• carers will be supported so that they are not forced into financial hardship by 
their caring role;  

• carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated with 
dignity7.  

                                            
2
 Haringey Carers Strategy – Haringey’s strategy for supporting unpaid adult carers, Delivery Plan 2009-2012, 

Haringey strategic Partnership, 2009 
3
 As noted in the Haringey adult carers strategy, source: Carers UK 

4
 National Carers Strategy:  Carers at the heart of 21

st
 Century families and communities, Department of Health, 

2008 
5
 Comprehensive Area Assessment Framework, Audit Commission, February 2009 

6
 National Carers Strategy, as above 

7
 National Carers Strategy, as above 

Page 5



 

 6 

4.3. “The carers' strategy is underpinned by £255 million to implement some 
immediate steps alongside with medium and long-term plans. 

• New commitments in the carers’ strategy include:  

• £150 million towards planned short breaks for carers;  

• £38 million towards supporting carers to enter or re-enter the job market; and  

• £6 million towards improving support for young carers.  
4.4. Other schemes associated with the strategy include the piloting of annual health 

checks for carers to help them stay well and training for GPs to recognise and 
support carers”8. 

 
4.5. The Personalisation agenda 

4.4.1 The 2005 Green Paper (Independence, Well-being and Choice) and the 
Our Health, Our Care, Our Say white paper both proposed the vision of a 
‘personalisation’ of services.  Personalisation being: “the way in which 
services are tailored to the needs and preferences of citizens.  The 
overall vision is that the state should empower citizens to shape their own 
lives and the services they receive”9.  This transformation in the way that 
services are shaped and provided is being compared with the changes 
which occurred with the introduction of the NHS and Community Care Act 
1990. 

4.4.2 In December 2007 the Department of Health published a Ministerial 
concordat ‘Putting People First’10 which set out the shared aims and 
values to drive the transformation of adult social care, by working across 
sectors and agendas. 

4.4.3 A Social Care Institute for Excellence/Carers UK briefing on the 
implications of this agenda for Carers can be found at Appendix C.  

 
4.6. Commissioning for Carers guidance has been produced by the Improvement 

and Development Agency in consultation with carers and local authorities.  The 
aim of this guidance is to help authorities to realise the vision of the National 
Carers Strategy (as above).  This guide covers: 

•••• Strategic Planning 

•••• Commissioning Services 

•••• Developing a provider market 
 

4.7. The Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004 places a duty on: 
4.4.1 Local Authorities to ensure that carers know that they are entitled to an 

assessment of their needs. 
4.4.2 Councils to consider carers outside interests when carrying out an 

assessment e.g. leisure, education and work. 

                                            
8
 http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/DH_085345 
9
 Our Health, Our Care, Our Say: a new direction for community services, Department of Health, 2006 

10
 Putting People First; a shared vision and commitment to the transformation of adult social care, Department of 

Health, 2007 

Page 6



 

 7 

4.4.3 Gives Local Authorities powers to enlist the help of housing, health and 
education to ensure that support is delivered coherently11.  

 
4.8. The Work and Families Act 2006 gives carers the right to request flexible 

working.  This can only be refused if the change in working pattern would 
damage the business or impact on other employees. 

 
4.9. The Equalities Bill 2009 sets out to replace a number of laws with one single 

Act to make it easier for people to understand their legal right and for employers 
to understand their legal obligations.  This Bill is expected to come into force in 
the Autumn of 2010.  It is the first time that carers are included in a Bill in this 
way and will protect carers from discrimination and harassment by association 
to the person they care for and will apply in employment, as well as in the 
provision of services. 

4.7.1. The Bill in effect implements the Coleman Judgement of the 
European Court of Justice in 2008.  The Coleman judgement means that people 
now have rights not to be subjected to direct discrimination or harassment on 
grounds of their association with a disabled person12. 

 
4.10. The Employment support for carers13 explores how caring 

responsibilities affect people’s decisions about employment.  The study came to 
the following conclusions: 

• Job seeking and benefits rules were viewed by carers as complicated and 
inflexible.  

• A single point of access where carers’ needs were understood was seen as 
important. 

• Removing barriers to employment requires action from a range of 
stakeholders. Legislative rights would not by themselves promote flexible 
work opportunities. 

• More clarity about benefits and entitlements is needed,  

• Care packages are rarely constructed with reference to the carers need to 
work14. 

 
4.11. Supporting Carers to Care15 recommends making benefits clearer and 

simpler to access and that the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
should improve the effectiveness of its employment support to carers at 
Jobcentre Plus and share good practice in supporting carers across its new 
Care Partnership Managers.  Findings of the report include: 

•••• Benefits for carers are unnecessarily complex and cause confusion, 
including understanding information and requirements from the Department 
for Work and Pensions (DWP).  

                                            
11
 www.direct.gov 

12
 www.equalityhumanrights.com 

13
 Employment support for carers (research report 597), Department for Work and Pensions, 2009 

14
 Local Government Information Unit, Health and Social Care Roundup briefing, 2009 

15
 Supporting Carers to care, Commons Public Accounts Committee, 2009 

Page 7



 

 8 

•••• Carers receive insufficient support to combine employment with caring 
responsibilities.  

 
5. Haringey Carer’s Population 

5.1.  According to the 2001 Census 15,967 people identified themselves as carers’ 
in Haringey.   As the Haringey Adult Carers strategy notes, this is likely to be an 
underestimate due to some people not identifying themselves as a carer. (NB 
these are the most up to date figures available). 

 
5.2. The Haringey carers register had 1201 carers registered in March 2009.  These 

are people who have identified themselves as carers and asked to go onto the 
register.  This does not mean that this is the number of people receiving a 
carer’s support service by the council, nor does it mean that they have had a 
carer’s assessment; they may have requested not to do so. 

 
5.3. According to the 2001 census the key demographics of the carer population in 

Haringey are: 
5.3.1. Gender profile  

• Men make up 41% of carers and women 59% compared with a male to 
female ratio of 48:52 for all people in the borough16.  

• Women undertake more hours of caring than men. 
o Of those who care 1-19 hours, 57% are women and 43% are men 
o Of those who care 20-49 hours, 60% are women and 40% are 

men 
o Of those who care 50 or more hours, 66% are women and 34% 

are men17. 
5.3.2. Age profile 

• The peak age for caring in Haringey is between 35-49 years.  

• Haringey has the most young adult carers aged 18-34 years.   
5.3.3. Ethnic profile 

• Ethnic groups over-represented as carers (by more than 1%) compared 
with their profile in the local population: 

 
 

Ethnic group Ethnic profile all residents Ethnic profile of carers 

White British 45.3% 47% 

Indian  2.9% 5% 

 

• Ethnic groups under-represented as carers (by more than 1%) compared 
with their profile in the local population: 

 
 
 

                                            
16
 Since 2001 the gender difference has reduced and by 2007 Mid Year estimates -224,700 people in total- there are 

roughly equal numbers of men and women resident in Haringey 
17
 Haringey Adult Carers Strategy, Draft Equalities Impact Assessment, 2009 

Page 8



 

 9 

Ethnic group Ethnic profile all residents Ethnic profile of carers 

White Other 16.1% 14% 

Black African 9.2% 7% 

 
5.3.4. Further information on all of the above can be found in the Haringey Adult 

Carers Strategy Equalities Impact Assessment. 
 

6. The Scrutiny Review 
6.1. This review will consider the support given to adult carers of adults.  However, 

should information suggest that there is a need for a further review into either 
child carers or adult cares of children then a recommendation may be 
considered for a piece of work at a later date by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
6.2. As part of the consultation for the Haringey Adult Carers Strategy a 

questionnaire was carried out asking carers a number of questions including: 

•••• How support services could be improved. 

•••• 24.74% Face to face carers’ assessments  

•••• 21.65% Annual health checks for carers 
 

•••• What practical help could be provided to the person as a carer? 

•••• 27.78% - A payment to cover transport/travel costs 

•••• 21.11% - Reliable safe transport for the cared for person 

•••• 22.22% - Financial advice for carers 

•••• What services would provide personal support to you as a carer? 

•••• 28.42% - Counselling for carers  

•••• 28.42% - Support group for carers 

•••• 18.95% - Telephone support 
6.2.1. A total of 127 completed questionnaires were received. 

 
6.3. The Independence, Wellbeing and Choice, Safeguarding Adults18 inspection 

whilst overall positive in relation to carers made a number of points relevant to 
this review: 

•••• “Services were in place to support carers in their role and there were 
positive reports where support had been received but this was not the 
experience of all. The council had recognised the need to further 
review and develop these services and this work had begun. There 
was a good range of services to meet the needs of people from black 
and minority ethnic communities available but staff did not always use 
them in the most effective way.19”  

•••• “The council had increased the number of carers assessments 
completed over the last 12 months. This had not always improved the 

                                            
18
 Independence, Well-being and Choice, Safeguarding Adults Inspection, Care Quality Commission, January 2009 

19
 As above 

Page 9



 

 10

quality of life for some carers. A Local Area Agreement target was 
supporting the further development of carer’s services…..20 “ 

•••• “The council should…ensure that the review of the carers strategy is 
progressed to deliver improved support and outcomes for carers..21” 
(N.b the Haringey Adult Carers Strategy is due at the Haringey 
Strategic Partnership later this year). 

 
6.4. The Carers Grant is paid to local authorities as part of the Area Based Grant.  It 

is a non ring-fenced general grant and it is therefore left to authorities to locally 
determine how best to spend the grant to meet local and national priorities.  
However, the guidance states that “whilst there are no conditions attached to 
the Carers Grant money for 2008/09, the Self Assessment Survey will continue 
to monitor the provision of services to support carers. The approach to carers 
set out in the Social Care Concordat ‘Putting People First’ should be reflected in 
the development of any services and policies22”. 
6.4.1. The indicative allocation for 2010/2011 £1,405,68423 

Please see Appendix D for full guidance. 
 

7. Terms of Reference 
 
“To assess the support provided to adult carers of adults in Haringey specifically to 
provide an objective view of these services and whether they provide value for money” 
 

8. Objectives of the review: 

• Assess how NHS Haringey and Haringey Council work together to provide 
carers’ breaks considering the requirement for PCT/LAs to have joint plans24 for 
carers’ breaks. 

• Consider the effectiveness of the assessment process. 

• Feed into the Haringey Carer’ Strategy Delivery Plan. 

• Assess whether services that deliver support to carers in Haringey provide 
Value for Money. 

• Council funding and NHS Haringey funding 

• To assess whether the services provided are appropriate to the needs of Carers. 

• To consider what Haringey Council, as an employer, is doing to meet the needs 
of carers. 

• Make recommendations to improve the support carers receive in Haringey. 

• Provide evidence for the Comprehensive Area Assessment Process 
 

8.1. The specific areas of the Haringey Adult Carers Strategy Delivery Plan that the 
review will incorporate are: 

• Number and availability of carers breaks 

                                            
20
 As above 

21
 As above 

22
 Carers Grant 2008-2011 Guidance, Department of Health, 2008 

23
 http://www.communities.gov.uk/documents/localgovernment/xls/7707021.xls  

24
 High Quality Care, NHS Operating Framework for the NHS in England 2009/10, Department of Health, 2008 

Page 10



 

 11

• Emergency cover 

• Information provision inc income maximisation 

• Remain in or return to work 

• Specialised carers service or resource centre 

• Access to health and well-being services 

• Training for care giving 
 

8.2. With reference to Value for money the review aims to consider the following 
questions: 

• Do costs compare well with others (allowing for external factors)? 

• Are costs commensurate with service delivery, performance and outcomes 
achieved? 

• Do costs reflect policy decisions? 

• How is Value for Money monitored and reviewed? 

• How is procurement managed? 

• How external funding is obtained? 
 

8.3. With reference to the Comprehensive Area Assessment process the following 
questions will be considered in relation to carers: 

 

• How healthy and well supported are people? 

• How is adult social care meeting people’s needs and choices? 
 
 

9. Methodology 
9.1. Panel Membership 

•••• Councillor Gina Adamou (Chair) 

•••• Councillor Karen Alexander 

•••• Councillor Ray Dodds 

•••• Councillor Richard Wilson 
 

9.2. Stakeholders 
 

Cllr Catherine Harris Chair of the Carers Partnership Board 

Lisa Redfern Assistant Director Adults 

Barbara Nicholls Head of Commissioning 

Susan Otiti Associate Director of Public Health 

Paul Clarke Programme Manager - Employment and 
Skills  

Phil Harris Housing Strategy and Needs 

Pat Duffy Head of Adult Learning Service 

Andy Briggs Head of Sport and Leisure Services 

Steve Davies Head of Human Resources 

Phylis Fealy Job Centre Plus 

Linda Barton Job Centre Plus 

Faiza Rizvi BME Carers 

Page 11



 

 12

Celia Bower Local Involvement Network 
Representative 

Robert Edmonds Director, Age Concern Haringey 

Charlotte Law Corporate Accountant 

Eve Featherstone Equalities Manager 

Colleen Fiffee Carers Centre 

Dekh Bhaal Asian Carers Support Group 

Ray Churchill Mental Health Carers’ Support Group 

Nick Bishop Mental Health Carer’ Support Group 

TBC Carers Partnership Board 
Representative 

TBC Carers Partnership Board 
Representative 

TBC Carers Partnership Board 
Representative 

TBC Carers Partnership Board 
Representative 

 
 

10. Timescale 
 

10.1. The review aims to report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee by 
March/April 2010.  The recommendations will then go to Cabinet and other 
bodies, for example the NHS Haringey, following this. 

 

 Aug. 
09 

Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. 
10 

Feb. Mar. Apr. 

Scoping           

Meetings   1 2 3 4 5    

Visits          

Reporting          

OSC          

Cabinet          

 
10.2. The proposed meeting structure is as follows: 
 

Evidence Sessions 

Meeting 1 
13th October 

Context of the review 
ACCS presentation 
Equalities 
Scoping report and Terms of 
reference 
 

 
Barbara Nicholls 
Eve Featherstone 

Meeting 2 
Tuesday 3rd 
November – 10am 

1. Job Centre Plus 
2. Economic Regeneration 
3. Adult learning  

 
Paul Clarke 
Pat Duffy  

Page 12



 

 13

 4. Leisure  
5. Housing 
6. HR 
 

Andy Briggs 
Phil Harris 
Steve Davies 
 

Meeting 3 
Thursday 26th 
November – 7pm 

 

Voluntary and Community 
Sector 

1. Carers Partnership 
Board 

2. BME Carers 
3. Carers Society 
4. Mental Health Carers 

Support Groups 
5. Asian Carers Support 

Group 
6. Local involvement 

Network  

 
 
Cllr Catherine Harris 
 
Faiza Rizvi 
Colleen Fiffee 
Ray Churchill 
 
Dekh Bhaal 
 
Celia Bower  
 

Meeting 4 
Tuesday 15th 
December – 10am 

 

 
NHS Haringey 
      
Commissioner    
Provider Arm (Community 
matron/District Nursing) 
 
Adults 
 

 
Susan Otiti 
James Slater 
Anne Daley/Jill Shattock 
TBC 
 
 
Lisa Redfern 
 

Meeting 5 
Thursday 7th 
January – 7pm 

Executive Member? 
Value for Money 
Adults 
Corporate Accountant 
Service Finance 
 
NHS Haringey 
Further TBC 

Cllr Dogus 
 
Lisa Redfern 
Charlotte Law 
Niyazi Soyel 
 
Susan Otiti 

Meeting 6 
Tuesday 19th 
January – 10am 
 

January 2010  

Conclusions and 
Recommendations 

 

Panel Member Visits 

November 17th 
Or December 19th  

BME Carers Meeting 
Selby Centre 

 

1st December Carers Partnership Board  

 
 

11. Independent Expert Advice 

Page 13



 

 14

11.1. In addition, the Panel may wish to consider if their work would be assisted 
by the provision of some independent expert advice.  This could “add value” to 
the review by: 

• Impartially evaluating current practice providing advice on successful 
approaches and strategies that are being employed elsewhere 

• Suggesting possible lines of inquiry 

• Commenting on the final report and, in particular, the feasibility of draft 
recommendations. 

 
 
 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Haringey Adult 
Carers Strategy  

 
 

 
 

2009-2014  
 

Page 277

Page 15



This strategy has been developed Haringey Council, working in partnership with 
the Carers Partnership Board, a subgroup of the Haringey Strategic Partnership. 
 
Members of the Haringey Strategic Partnership are: 

• Haringey Council 

• NHS Haringey 

• Metropolitan Police 

• Job Centre Plus 

• Local Businesses 

• New Deal for Communities  

• College of North East London 

• Middlesex University 

• Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations 

• Community Empowerment Network 

• Race Equality Joint Consultative Council 

• Faith Communities 

• Greater London Authority 

• Members of Parliament 

• Registered Social Landlords  
 
Carers organisations currently working in Haringey 
Age Concern Haringey 
Alzheimers Society Haringey 
Asian Carers Support Group  
BME Carers Support Services 
Carers Centre 
Mental Health Carers Support Association 
 
Alternative formats 
This strategy is available on request in community languages, Braille, on tape, in 
large print and in a format accessible to people with learning disabilities. 
 
For more information contact: 
Margaret Allen 
Assistant Director Commissioning and Strategy 
Adult, Culture and Community Services, Haringey Council 
40 Cumberland Road 
Wood Green 
London N22 7SG 
Email: margaret.allen@haringey.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8489 3719

Page 278

Page 16



 

 3 

  
 

Draft Foreword 
 
The carers of Haringey provide unpaid support to the people they care for, to 
family members, partners and friends. Carers choose to do it because they care 
about the quality of life of the people they care for and want to support their 
choice to live at home. Carers’ choice to care provides an essential voluntary 
contribution to society as well as to the people they support. If carers in Haringey 
stopped their unpaid work the cost of replacing it would be £236.5 million a year. 
Carers in Haringey are proud of their honourable role which needs to be 
recognised, supported and celebrated.  
 
Haringey’s carers are as diverse as the people of the borough. They live in all 
parts of the borough and come from all sections of the community. Some may be 
starting to care as a family member partner or friend becomes frail or disabled. 
Others may have been caring for many decades. Some carers have given up 
paid employment; others are balancing employment and caring. Some will be 
grieving after the death of the person they cared for and trying to work out what 
that now means for their lives.  
 
Some people may not even recognise themselves as a carer or know there is 
support available to them in their caring role and in their life apart from caring. 
 
Whatever the differences in their situation, all carers have a right to support for 
their needs, for advice and information, for a listening ear and for options to 
enable them to continue caring and to have a life of their own. 
 
We are committed to working together to reach out to, and be alongside, 
Haringey’s carers and to provide them with the personalised support they need in 
their invaluable work. 

 
Signatories 
 

Page 279

Page 17



 

 4 

 
Executive Summary .................................................................... 5 
Aim……………….. ........................................................................ 5 
Vision…………….......................................................................... 5 
1 Introduction ......................................................................... 6 

1.1 Background Information..........................................................................6 
1.2 The National Context ..............................................................................7 
1.3 The Local Context ................................................................................17 
1.4 Purpose of this Strategy .......................................................................21 

2.1 Aim…………....................................................................... 22 
2.2 Vision………………………………………………………….22 
2.3 Outcomes 2009-2014 ........................................................ 22 
2.4 Who and what is covered by the Strategy (its Scope)...24 
3 Equalities Statement......................................................... 25 
4 Links with the Other Strategies ....................................... 25 

4.1 Links with the Sustainable Community Strategy...................................26 
4.2 Links with Other Relevant Strategies....................................................27 
4.2.1 Links with Haringey’s Well-being Strategic Framework ........................29 

5 Measuring Performance ................................................... 31 
5.1 Links with Haringey’s Local Area Agreement .......................................31 
5.3 Outcomes and Related Key Targets.....................................................31 

6 Outcomes and Priorities decided by carers 2009 – 2014 
and how these will be monitored..................................... 32 
6.1 Outcome 1 ............................................................................................32 
6.2 Outcome 2 ............................................................................................33 
6.3 Outcome 3 ............................................................................................34 
6.4 Outcome 4 ............................................................................................34 

7 Monitoring the Strategy.................................................... 35 
8 Bibliography ...................................................................... 37 
9 Glossary............................................................................. 40 
Appendix A: Needs Assessment - Setting the Scene for the 

Strategy.............................................................................. 42 
Appendix B: Lead Contacts for Each Outcome...................... 44 
Appendix C: Development of the Strategy.............................. 44 
Appendix D: Consultation about the Strategy........................ 45 

Page 280

Page 18



 

 5 

Executive Summary  
 

Aim 

The aim of this Strategy is:  

• to identify and support Haringey’s unpaid carers in their caring role and in 
their life apart from caring  

• to provide culturally appropriate support for all Haringey’s diverse carers 
throughout their caring lives 

• to involve Haringey carers in all developments affecting them and the 
people they care for  

• to ensure that all partners to the strategy work together effectively to 
support carers 

Vision 

The vision of the Haringey Adult Carers Strategy 2009-2014 is  
‘Carers in Haringey are empowered to care and live a better life’. 
 
Outcome 1 
Carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to the 
integrated and personalised services they need to support them in their caring 
role 
 
Outcome 2 
Carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role 

 
Outcome 3 
Carers will be supported so that they are not forced into financial hardship by 
their caring role 

 
Outcome 4 
Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated with 
dignity 
 
Key actions/ programmes 
These are outlined in Section 6 
 

Page 281

Page 19



 
 

1 Introduction 
 

1.1 Background Information 
 
Haringey Carers Strategy 2005-2008 provided the framework for supporting 
carers. That strategy was developed by a partnership between carers, Haringey 
Council, Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (HTPCT) – now NHS Haringey-
and Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust, (BEHMHT). 
 
Haringey Carers Strategy 2005-2008  
identified five key areas for improvement: 

• Information 

• Assessment of Carers’ needs 

• Carers’ Health and Short Breaks 

• Carers’ Employment and Financial Security 

• Voice of Carers in Service Planning 
 
The strategy’s action plan for 2005-2008 has been reviewed and updated, most 
recently to 31 October 2008.  
 
It now needs revision and updating in the light of significant national and local 
developments. The revision provides an opportunity for partners to renew their 
commitment to more effectively meeting carers’ needs in the years ahead and for 
carers involvement to be the foundation of this process. The new Haringey 
strategy will have an accompanying delivery plan, which will be completed after 
consultation with carers and stakeholders. 
 
The most important national development is the 10 year national strategy for 
carers, Carers at the heart of 21st century families and communities, published in 
2008.1. The national strategy was developed after extensive consultation with 
carers. We will use its outcomes for adult carers as the outcomes for this revised 
Haringey strategy. They are: 

• Carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to the 
 integrated and personalised services they need to support them in their  caring 
 role 

• Carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role  

                                                 
1
 Carers at the heart of 21st century families and communities DH 2008 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/Publication
sPolicyAndGuidance/DH_085345 
 

Page 282

Page 20



 

7 

• Carers will be supported so that they are not forced into financial hardship 
 by their caring role 
 

• Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated  with 
dignity 
 

Who is a carer? 
The word carer has been used to mean different things which can be confusing. 
For example many “carers” of drug and alcohol users do not see themselves as 
“traditional carers” so do not come forward to access services.  Instead they 
respond more positively to “family and friends”. The government acknowledges in 
the new 2008 national strategy (Page 19) that the term “carer “has different 
meanings in different legislation.1  
 
The definition used by the national strategy is: 
 
 A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid 
 support to family or potentially friends. This could be caring for a 
 relative, partner or friend who is ill, frail, disabled or has mental health  

  or substance misuse problems.2 
  

The government is proposing that this definition is used across government. 
The definition does not cover paid or employed homecarers or employees 
in residential homes or volunteers.  
 

1.2 The National Context 

 

Demographic issues  
 
The 2001 Census3 included, for the first time, a question on the provision of 
unpaid care. It asked: 
 
 Do you look after or give any help or support to family members  
 friends or neighbours or others because of: long-term physical or 
 mental ill-health or disability or problems related to old age? 

 
Analysis of the 2001 Census by Carers UK 4shows that women are more likely to 
be carers than men. Across the UK 58% of carers are female and 42% are male. 
Women have a 50:50 chance of providing care by the time they are 59; 
compared with men who have the same chance by the time they are 75 years 

                                                 
2 As above Page 19 
3
 http://www.statistics.gov.uk/census2001/census2001.asp 
4
 Statistical analysis of the Census Carers UK, 2001 

Page 283

Page 21



 

8 

old. Women are more likely to give up work in order to care5. Most carers (5.7 
million) are aged over 18 and the peak age for caring is 50 to 59. More than one 
in five people aged 50-59 (1.5 million across the UK) are providing some unpaid 
care. One in four women in this age group is providing some care compared with 
18% of men. This compares with 6% of adults aged 18 to 34, 12.5% aged 35 to 
44, and 11.5% aged 65 or over.  
 
Caring varies between ethnic groups. Bangladeshi and Pakistani men and 
women are three times more likely to provide care compared with their white 
British counterparts. 
 
National data since 19856 shows a continued increase in the number of carers 
providing in excess of 20 hours of care per week. This figure has risen from 1.5 
million in 1985 and 1990, to 1.7 million in 1995, to 1.9 million in the 2001 census.  
 
Figures for the number of carers providing 50 or more hours per week have also 
increased to 1.25 million in the 2001 Census. Previous GHS figures from 1985 to 
2000 were between 750,000 and 850,000.  
 
Carers UK reported in January 20097 that every year over 2.3 million adults 
become carers and over 2.3 million adults stopped being carers and that 3 in 5 
people will be carers at some point in their lives. 

Another Carers UK report in 2007 identified that one in five carers give up work to 
care which usually means a considerably reduced income, if not a slide into 
poverty. The main carer’s benefit, Carer’s Allowance, remains the lowest benefit 
of its kind, at £50.55 per week (2008/9 levels) for providing at least 35 hours of 
care a week. Helping carers to remain in paid work, through support services and 
access to flexible working, has a significant impact, for individuals and for the 
economy as a whole.  

The Department of Health identified8 that society, and carers themselves, will be 
affected by the following long-term trends:  

• carers are getting older while  there is growing demand for care 

• changes in the choices people are making about how and where they  want 
 their care, with more people wanting to be cared for in their own home  

• changes in technology supporting people to live independently  for longer  

• changes in the caring relationships in families with, for example, increases 
 in young and older carers 

                                                 
5
 It could be you, Carers UK 2000 

6 General Household Survey 1985 HMSO 1987 
7 http://www.carersuk.org/Home 
8 Terms of  Reference for Standing Commission on Carers Department of Health 2007 

http://nds.coi.gov.uk/environment/fullDetail.asp?ReleaseID=311742&NewsAreaID=2&NavigatedF
romDepartment=True 

Page 284

Page 22



 

9 

• changes in the locations of families with more family members working or 
 living further away from those who need to be cared for  

• changes in the number of adults and children with chronic conditions and 
 mental health problems. 

• growing concerns around the misuse of alcohol 

Effects of caring on carers’ health 

The health of the UK's six million carers suffers as a direct result of unpaid caring 
work. According to In Poor Health9, a survey of the impact of caring by Carers UK 
in 2004, the more hours a carer provides, the more likely it is that they will be in 
poor health. This is particularly so for those providing more than 50 hours a 
week, which is the case for nearly 21% of carers. 

Further research was carried out to launch Carers Week 200610. A survey of 
more than 5,000 carers shows the vast majority of those questioned (79%) 
reported that caring had made their health worse – and yet just one in four (27%) 
had been offered a health check by their GP. An overwhelming 89% of carers 
thought they should be offered an annual health check. Unsurprisingly, 71% of 
carers said that health problems affected their own ability to care – and, in turn, 
57% said their health problems were affecting the person they cared for. The 
most common complaints, stress/worry (91%), depression (58%) stem from the 
emotional impact of caring, while backache (50%) demonstrated the physical toll 
on the health of carers. 

Key Legislation  
 

The following is a brief outline of key legislation affecting carers. Full details are 
to be found in Carers and their Rights11 or at the Office of Public Information 
website12. 
 
Disabled Persons (Services, Consultation and Representation) Act 1986 
requires that during an assessment of a disabled person’s needs consideration 
must be given to whether a carer is able to continue in that role. 
 
NHS and Community Care Act 1990 
requires local authorities to involve families and carers when making plans to 
help vulnerable people. 
  
Carers (Recognition and Services) Act 1995 

                                                 
9 In Poor Health Carers UK 2006 
http://www.carersuk.org/Policyandpractice/Research/Healthimpactofcaring/1201185222 
10
 Princess Royal Trust for Carers 2006 

11
 Carers and their rights. Luke Clements Carers UK 2007 
http://www.carersuk.org/Policyandpractice/Delegateresources/Carersandtheirrights 
12
 http://www.opsi.gov.uk/ 

Page 285

Page 23



 

10 

gives carers the right to have their needs assessed in relation to their willingness 
to continue in their caring role. 
 
Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000 
gives all carers the right to ask for an assessment of their own needs in relation 
to their caring role. Local authorities can offer assessments to carers even when 
the person they care for refuses an assessment for themselves. They have the 
power to provide services directly to carers. 
  
Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004 (England and Wales) 

• Places a duty on local authorities to inform carers who are eligible of 
their right to a carer’s assessment. 

• An assessment must consider work, life-long learning and leisure.  

• Gives local authorities new powers to enlist the help of housing, health, 
education and other local authorities in providing support to carers. 

 
Work and Families Act 2006 
gives carers the right to request flexible working from their employer. They can 
ask their employer to change their work pattern. It can only be refused if it will 
damage the business or have an impact on other employees. 
 
Law Commission’s proposed review of social care legislation  

In November 2008 the Law Commission13 published a scoping report for a review 
of adult social care legislation and came to the conclusion that: 

 the legislative framework for adult residential care, community care, adult 
protection and support for carers is inadequate, often incomprehensible 
and outdated.  It remains a confusing patchwork of conflicting statues 
enacted over a period of 60 years.  There is no single, modern statute to 
which service providers and service users can look to understand whether 
(and, if so, what kind of) services can or should be provided.  

This analysis is especially relevant to legislation affecting carers which has 
developed in a piecemeal and ad hoc way by means of Private Members Bills.  

 
 
 
Relevant national and policy initiatives 
 

Carers Grant  
 

                                                 
13
 http://www.lawcom.gov.uk/adult_social_care.htm 

 

Page 286

Page 24



 

11 

The Government introduced the Carers Grant in 1999 to help councils to provide 
breaks and services for carers in England. From 2008, the Grant has been paid 
to councils as part of the Area Based Grant (ABG). 
 
Our Health, Our Care, Our Say  
 

In 2006 the White Paper Our Health, Our Care Our Say14 (OHOCOS) proposed a 
vision of social care services for users and carers that included ‘personalisation’. 
This signalled a strategic shift towards early intervention and prevention. 

A New Deal for Carers  

This was announced in February 2007. It included a review of the 1999 National 
Carers Strategy with a consultation which closed in September 2007. An Expert 
Carers Programme and a national helpline for carers was announced. A new 
grant of £25million per year for emergency home-based respite for carers is 
being paid to local authorities from October 1st 2007. 

Personalisation: Putting People First 
 
In December 2007 Government launched Putting People First. It sets out the 
shared aims and values of the Government, Local Authorities and the National 
Health Service which will help guide the transformation of adult social care and 
support the Government’s commitment to independent living for all adults. This 
move to personalisation will have implications for all service users and carers. 
  
Personalisation means: 

the way in which services are tailored to the needs and preferences of 
citizens. The overall vision is that the state should empower citizens to 
shape their own lives and the services they receive.15  

 
This means that everyone who receives social care support, regardless of 
their level of need, in any setting, whether from statutory services, the third 
sector and community or private sector or by funding it themselves, will 
have choice and control over how that support is delivered.  
 
 

                                                 
14
 Our health, our care, our say: a new direction for community services, Department of Health, 
2006  
15
 As in note 11 above 
 

Page 287

Page 25



 

 

12 

 
The introduction of personalisation is being hailed as the biggest change to the 
delivery of social care since the introduction of the NHS and Community Care Act 
1990. There are five elements of the vision for transformation: 

 

1. A new relationship between Government, Local Authorities, the NHS, 
Independent Sector Providers and the Regulator.  
 

2. A major shift of resources and practice to prevention, early intervention 
and re enablement.  
 

3. High quality accessible information and advice available to all irrespective 
of financial means. 
 

4. A commitment to treating carers as partners. 
 

5. Maximum power, control and choice in the hands of the people who use 
these services and their carers. 

 

Government guidance on personalisation states that, by March 2011, people who 
use services and their carers, frontline staff and providers should experience 
significant progress in all local authority areas.   
 

Personalisation pilots have been taking place prior to full implementation. A 
recent study has reported a positive response from carers involved in these.16  
 

Putting people first without putting carers second 
The Princess Royal Trust for Carers has produced this guidance on good 
practice in the implementation of personalisation for carers.17 
 

Standing Commission on Carers. 

In September 2007, Ivan Lewis, the Health Minister, announced the creation of a 
Standing Commission on Carers. The Commission is chaired by Philippa Russell, 
a member of the Disability Rights Commission and advocate for disabled children 
and young people. It reports to the Secretary of State for Health. Its terms of 
reference are to: 

• ensure the voice of carers is central to the development of Government 
policy  

• look at how carers will be affected by demographic issues  
• monitor implementation of the Carers Strategy and the New Deal for Carers

                                                 
16Individual Budgets Pilot Projects: Impact and outcomes for carers, 2009 
Glendinning, C. and others 2009 http://php.york.ac.uk/inst/spru/research/summs/DHPcarers.php 
17 Putting people first without putting carers second. The Princess Royal Trust for Carers. 2009 

Page 288

Page 26



 

 

13 

The national Carers strategy 200818 

 

After a period of consultation with carers the long-awaited national strategy was 
published in June 2008. It raises the national profile of carers. It sets out the 
Government's short-term agenda and long-term vision for the future recognition 
and support of carers.  It states “that the needs of carers must, over the next 10 
years, be elevated to the centre of family policy and receive the recognition and 
status they deserve.” 

£255 million “new money” is available for new commitments including:  

• £150 million for Primary Care Trusts (PCTs)  towards planned short 
 breaks for carers;  

• £38 million towards supporting carers to enter or re-enter the job 
 market and  

• £6 million towards improving support for young carers.  

Other schemes include: 

• piloting of annual health checks for carers to help them stay well  

• training for GPs to recognise and support carers.    

A more integrated and personalised support service for carers will be offered 
through  

• easily accessible information,  

• targeted training for key professionals to support carers, 

• pilots to examine how the NHS can better support carers 

The Princess Royal Trust for Carers has produced estimates for individual PCTs 
of the new money for carers’ breaks within their overall allocations. The total 
money is £150m over 2 years. 
 
The NHS Operating Framework19 says:  
 
 “The carers’ strategy sets out how we can ensure that we support 
 carers. One key requirement is that PCTs should work with their local 
 authority partners and publish joint plans on how their combined
 funding will support breaks for carers, including short breaks, in a 
 personalised way."   
 
Strategic Health Authorities will be monitoring PCTs’ performance on this.    

                                                 
18 Carers at the heart of 21

st
 century families and communities DH 2008 

19http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/
DH_091445 

Page 289

Page 27



 

14 

 
Equalities and social inclusion 

Carers in general are a potentially disadvantaged group in comparison with 
populations without caring responsibilities. Caring intersects with age, gender, 
ethnicity, religion, sexuality and socio-economic status to compound 
disadvantage. In addition for carers supporting drug users there is the added 
issue of the illicit nature of drug use and this will also present as a barrier to 
accessing services, particularly where children are concerned. 
 

Carers are among the most socially excluded groups in society, less likely 
than other groups to access services and when they do are less likely to gain 
from them. This may affect Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) carers 
disproportionately.  

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) is being carried out on this revised 
Haringey strategy. 

The government in the national carers strategy20 points out that: 

 Carers are not a homogenous group. Caring can take a large number 
 of forms and is undertaken by individuals from all walks of life at 
 different stages in their lives… 

 The experience of caring will differ according to the circumstances of 
 the person cared for, and the cultural expectations and family 
 structures within different communities. In addition there are some 
 groups of carers about whom little is known due to difficulties in 
 identifying them at a national and local level, for example those with 
 learning disabilities, and lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender (LGBT) 
 carers. 

Carers are developing a higher profile in relation to equalities issues as the 
following developments show:  

• European Court of Justice  “discrimination by association” judgment21 

Sharon Coleman’s son, Oliver, was born with a rare condition affecting his 
breathing. He is also deaf. The court upheld Ms Coleman’s claim of 
discrimination by association and ruled that treating employees less 
favourably because of their association with a disabled person is unlawful. Ms 
Coleman’s case was that she was forced to resign from her job as a legal 
secretary after being harassed by her employers and refused flexible working, 
which was allowed to other employees. She believed she was specifically 
targeted because she has a child with a disability, and was denied the flexible 
work arrangements offered to her colleagues without disabled children. 

 

• New Deal for Carers Taskforce 

                                                 
20 As 9 above, Page 19 
21http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/newsandcomment/Pages/legalvictoryinEurope.aspx 

Page 290

Page 28



 

15 

Four Task Forces were created to help in developing the national Carers' 
Strategy. The Equality Task Force produced a report22 on equality in relation 
to carers which outlines some of the major issues and debates. The report 
concludes that their work has 

highlighted the ongoing need for effective consultation with carers and 
those in receipt of care as well as improvements in the evidence base on 
carers so that carers with different characteristics and their needs can be 
quantified. This would help to address the problem of carers from some 
groups under-reporting their caring status and better identify need. 

 

• Equalities Bill 2009 

Discrimination against carers to be outlawed  
 

The Equalities Bill brings together nine existing major pieces of legislation on 
equalities. For the first time carers are included and will have protection 
against discrimination in their own right as people  ‘associated with’ someone 
who is disabled. The provision will apply in employment and in the provision 
of goods, facilities and services and education and property services. The Bill 
will, in effect, implement the 2008 European Court of Justice Coleman 
judgment, described earlier. 
 

The new ruling will apply to the public, private and voluntary sector. 
Employers and service providers must not treat carers differently from people 
who are not carers. They will need to ensure that employees or customers 
who are carers will be given equal access to jobs or services. This means 
having an understanding of who carers are and how they might be affected by 
their policies. The Equality Bill will give carers the right not to be discriminated 
against. By giving the same rights against ‘discrimination by association’ 
across all protected groups such as age, race and sexual orientation, as well 
as disability, the Government is providing consistency and clarity to both 
employers and carers.  
 
The Equality Bill passed its second reading in the House of Commons on 11 
May 2009. It will now be considered in more detailed by a committee of MPs. 

 
 

 

 

End of life care 

                                                 
22http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/
DH_086585 

Page 291

Page 29



 

16 

The National Audit Office 23(NAO) indicates that the majority of people would 
prefer to die at home, but because of lack of NHS and social care support, many 
die in hospital despite there being no medical need for this. The report points out 
that: 

 Patients and carers suffer from a lack of integrated care and a single 
contact for coordination. Only 29% of PCTs report that carer assessments 
are offered as standard. End of life care in hospitals does not always 
reflect dignity and privacy and the transition from ‘curing’ to ‘caring’ may 
not be handled well. 

The government published an End of Life Care Strategy24 in 2008. Primary Care 
Trusts (PCTs) are the lead organisation for its implementation. 

 
 
Other relevant initiatives  

More care at home 

Government initiatives, particularly since the publication of the White Paper Our 
Health, Our Care Our Say,25 generally widely supported in principle, is for more 
health and social care being provided in people’s homes, rather than in 
institutions. This will add to the pressure on carers.  

Implementation of the recommendations in Lord Darzi’s recent report, Healthcare 
for London: a Framework for Action26, will move more health services into the 
community, increasing the need for personal care and demand on carers.  

Safeguarding of Vulnerable Adults (SOVA)   
The Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) published a report27 in 2008 
on arrangements to safeguard vulnerable adults from abuse. The CSCI report 
identifies that carers and the people they support may be vulnerable adults. In 
common with other social groupings in society carers may experience abuse 
themselves or may be the perpetrators of abuse because of the stress of caring. 
The report emphasises the importance of embedding safeguarding in services for 

                                                 

23
 End of Life Care: National Audit Office 2008  

24
 End of Life Care Strategy: promoting high quality care for all adults at the end of life. 2008 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/D
H_086277 
25
 Our Health, Our Care, Our Say: A New Direction for Community Services DH 2006 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/Ourhealthourcareoursay/index.htm 
26 Healthcare for London: a Framework for Action 
27 Safeguarding adults: A Study of the Effectiveness of Arrangements to Safeguard Adults from 
Abuse. CSCI 2008 

Page 292

Page 30



 

17 

carers and the people they care for. More information about safeguarding adults 
in Haringey28 is available at the following website address: 
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/social_care_and_health/safeguardingadults.ht
m 

 
 

Transition from Children to Adults services 

The National Strategy outcome for young carers is that:  
Children and young people will be protected from inappropriate caring and 
have the support they need to learn, develop and thrive, to enjoy positive 
childhoods and to achieve against all the Every Child Matters29 outcomes.  
 
For young carers  
Young carers were particularly concerned about gaps in support around the 
family and the person they care for. They also worry about their own 
problems, for instance missing out on the opportunities other young people 
have. Children should not have to take on inappropriate types and levels of 
caring, which can affect school attendance, emotional and physical 
wellbeing and longer-term life opportunities.  
 
Task force Equalities report30 
Age: Caring undertaken by children and young people  
Being a young carer has a detrimental effect on young people’s life chances and 
opportunities. Among young adults (aged 16-24) caring reduces the likelihood of 
participating in further or higher education, with a resulting impact on future 

earnings as well as their own personal development.
22 

More general issues 
resulting from caring include problems at school, health and emotional problems, 
isolation, lack of time for leisure, problems with transition to adulthood, lack of 
recognition and feeling they are not listened to.  
 

1.3 The Local Context 

 
The Borough of Haringey 

                                                 
 
29 http://www.everychildmatters.gov.uk/ 

 
30
 New Deal for Carers Equalities Taskforce Report  2008 

If you think you, or someone you know is being mistreated, 
ring the Safeguarding Adults Referral and Advice Line on 020 
8489 1400 (office hours) or 020 8348 3148 (out of hours). 

Page 293

Page 31



 

18 

 
Haringey is, in demographic terms, an exceptionally diverse and fast changing 
borough. Some 50% of our population overall, and three-quarters of our young 
people, are from ethnic minority backgrounds, and around 200 languages are 
spoken in the borough.31 It is the fifth most diverse borough in London. (See 
Appendix A for more detailed information on the borough.) 
 
Demographic data on carers in Haringey 
 
According to the 2001 Census, 15,967 people in Haringey identify themselves as 
unpaid carers32. This means that 7.4% of the total local population are carers, 
compared with the London average of 8.5%.  
The table below provides more detail about the amount of care provided on a 
weekly basis. 
 
Provision of unpaid care 
 

  Haringey London England 

All People 216,507 7,172,091 49,138,831 
Provides no care 200,540 6,562,201 44,261,771 
Provides 1-19 hours care a 
week 

10,637 417,934 3,347,531 

Provides 20-49 hours care a 
week 

2,098 72,761 530,797 

Provides 50 or more hours 
care a week 

3,232 119,195 998,732 

 

 
Source: Census 2001 

 
The census figures show that a significant number of Haringey people provide 
full-time care; 5,330 for at least 20 hours care per week including 3,232 providing 
at least 50 hours care per week. For some carers, such as those supporting drug 
and alcohol users, the practical support they give (eg. sorting out benefits and 
getting them to appointments) is more difficult to quantify given the nature of the 
issues and the chaotic needs of the user. 
 
Haringey carers identified in the census were estimated, in 2007, to save the 
borough £236.5 million a year 33. According to a Carers UK report34 (2007) the 

                                                 
31
 Haringey’s Borough Profile 2008 
http://harinet.haringey.gov.uk/index/news_and_events/fact_file/boroughprofile.htm 
32
 These figures are likely to be underestimates, as many people who provide help and support to 
a relative, friend or neighbour do not identify themselves as carers 
33
 Estimate from Carers UK, based on 2001 Census 

34
 Valuing Carers- calculating the value of unpaid care 
http://www.carersuk.org/Newsandcampaigns/Valuingcarers/Fullreport 

Page 294

Page 32



 

19 

value of the care provided, calculated as replacement care, is estimated to have 
increased as follows: 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Haringey Carers Register  
 
The Council keeps a register of carers so that we can better plan services for 
carers. There were 1201 people on Haringey’s Carers’ Register as at 31st March 
2009, with a greater prevalence in the east of the borough as shown in the map 
on the following page. This is most likely to correspond with the higher level of 
service users in the east.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Value of 
replacement 
care 2007 (£m) 

Value of 
replacement 
care 2002 
(£m) 

Increase 
(£m) 

% 
increase 

Haringey £236.5 £184.2 £52.3 28 

Page 295

Page 33



 

20 

Source: London Borough of Haringey 
 
 

Developments and  Achievements in Haringey since 2005 
 

• Comprehensive “Essential Guide for Carers in Haringey 2007” - 3000 hard 
copies and accessible on the website 

• Introduction of Flexible carer’s services (2007) 

• Haringey Carers Centre established as independent resource for carers 
(2007) 

• Partnership working with voluntary sector providers 

• Between 2005/6 and 2008/9 Haringey Council has doubled the number of 
carers who have received a service and quadrupled the numbers of carers 
receiving information and advice. 

Page 296

Page 34



 

21 

• Measurable improvement in performance on carers’ assessments and 
services: from 4.8% on C62 in 2005-2006 (services only) to 21.7 % on 
National Indicator (NI) 135 in 2008-2009 (services and information and 
advice) 

• Local Area Agreement target for carers’ breaks exceeded in 2006-7 and 
2007-8 

• Training DVD on information-sharing with mental health carers produced 
as partnership project between carers, voluntary and statutory 
organisations (2007) 

• Introduction of Carer of the Year award  in 2007; year 3 in 2009 

• Creation of Carers Champion (elected member) who chairs Carers 
Partnership Board (2008) 

• North London Carers Learning Network 2005-2008: an innovative, 
voluntary sector project provided training for care-giving and vocational 
training   

• 36 expressions of interest from carers to join the Carers Partnership Board 
translated into a carer membership of 19  on re-constituted Board 
(September 2008) 

• 2 local consultations contributed to National Carers Strategy (2007) 

 

1.4 Purpose of this Strategy 
 

Haringey Carers Strategy is being reviewed to produce a strategy which: 

• will improve support and services 

• meets the aspirations of Haringey carers and the people they care for 

• meets the requirements of the national carers strategy 2008 

• will be an updated 5 year partnership strategy for the period 2009-2014 

• will ensure carers’ needs are included in the  implementation of the 
personalisation of social care 

 

1.5 Reason for the Change in Policy 
 

A new strategy is needed: 

• to enable all partners to deliver their statutory responsibilities to Haringey 
 carers and the people they care for 

• to assure  the equitable and transparent use of the carers’ element of the 
Area Based Grant 

• for the effective monitoring of partners’ joint resources 

• to plan for the introduction of personalisation 
 
 

Page 297

Page 35



 

 

22 

 

2 Policy Statement 

2.1 Aim 

 
The aim of this Strategy is:  

• to identify and support Haringey’s unpaid carers in their caring role and in 
their life apart from caring  

• to provide culturally appropriate support for all Haringey’s diverse carers 
throughout their caring lives 

• to involve Haringey carers in all developments affecting them and the 
people they care for  

• to ensure that all partners to the strategy work together effectively to 
support carers 

 

2.2 Vision 

The vision of the 2008 national strategy is that by 2018 carers will have in place “a 
caring system on your side, a life of your own” and that “carers will be universally 
recognised and valued as being fundamental to strong families and stable 
communities. Support will be tailored to meet individuals’ needs, enabling carers 
to maintain a balance between their caring responsibilities and a life outside 
caring, whilst enabling the person they support to be a full and equal citizen.”  

 
The vision of the Haringey Carers Strategy 2005-2008 was 
‘Carers in Haringey are empowered to care and live a better life’. 
This vision is as relevant now and into the future as it has been in the past.  
It is proposed that the same vision be adopted for the 2009-2014 Haringey 
strategy. 
 

2.3 Outcomes 2009-2014 

 
The national strategy identifies four outcomes for adult carers which flow from the 
vision.  They are the main national strategic goals for carers. The following table 
lists the national outcomes alongside what this might mean for carers in 
Haringey, the Haringey objectives. These are taken from the Haringey Carers 
Strategy 2005-2008, as well as national strategy objectives. 

Page 298

Page 36



 

 

23 

 
 

Table to show Outcomes from National Carers Strategy and suggested 
Haringey Objectives 

 

 National Strategy 
Outcomes 

Haringey Objectives 
 

1 Carers will be respected 
as expert care partners 
and will have access to 
the integrated and 
personalised services 
they need to support 
them in their caring role 

• To ensure recognition and respect for carers 

• To provide flexible support and breaks to 
enable carers to carry on caring 

• To ensure carers are involved in the support 
planning for the people they care for 

• To provide carers with clear information to 
make better choices about the support they 
need 

• To involve carers in planning and monitoring 
services 

• To ensure that all organisations supporting 
carers work together to provide personalised 
and culturally appropriate support 

• To provide carers with support relevant to 
their age, gender, race, disability, sexuality 
and religion and the nature of the caring role 

2 Carers will be able to 
have a life of their own 
alongside their caring 
role 

• To provide support to enable carers to have a 
life apart from caring 

• To support carers’ education, training and 
employment and leisure needs 

3 Carers will be supported 
so that they are not 
forced into financial 
hardship by their caring 
role  

• To provide carers with access to information 
and advice on income maximisation 

• To ensure that carers are enabled to choose 
to remain in, or return to, employment  

 

4 Carers will be supported 
to stay mentally and 
physically well and 
treated with dignity 
 

• To provide support for carers’ emotional and 
physical health 

• To treat carers with dignity  

Page 299

Page 37



 

 

24 

 

2.4 Who and what is covered by the Strategy (its Scope) 
 

A definition of carer needs to be agreed. Below is the proposed national 
definition and two current definitions used in Haringey: 
 
 
Definition proposed by government 
 
Government strategy 2008 definition for use across government, out for 
consultation 
A carer spends a significant proportion of their life providing unpaid support to 
family or potentially friends. This could be caring for a relative, partner or friend 
who is ill, frail, disabled or has mental health or substance misuse problems.35 
 
Local definitions 
 
Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust Mental Health Carers 
Strategy 2007 definition 
someone who provides practical unpaid help or emotional support to family 
members, neighbours or friends who are suffering from mental health difficulties; 
e.g. a carer may or may not live in the same home as the person they are caring 
for.  
 
Haringey Carers Strategy 2005-2008 definition  
A carer is someone who looks after a partner, parent, brother or sister, son or 
daughter (including adult children) or a friend who is disabled, and would not be 
able to live in the community without their help. They are unpaid. 

 
 
Who and what the strategy will not cover 
 

• This strategy is for adults as outlined above and will not cover children  and 
young people and their carers who are the responsibility of the  Children’s 
and Young People’s Partnership. 

• The strategy does not cover paid or employed care workers or  employees in 
 residential homes or volunteers in voluntary agencies

                                                 
35 Carers at the heart of 21

st
 century families and communities DH 2008 

Which carers in Haringey are covered by this strategy? 
 
Carers aged 18 and over of people aged 18 and over where the cared for 
person lives in the borough of Haringey.  

Page 300

Page 38



 

 

25 

 
 

3 Equalities Statement 
We will update this section when Equalities Bill 2009 is enacted  

 
 
The diversity of carers’ needs 
Carers needs are as varied as the diversity of carers themselves. The following 
list, while not exhaustive, provides some indication of the possible range of 
circumstances of carers in Haringey: 
 

• carers from all of Haringey’s changing and diverse BME communities and 
all cultural and religious groups 

• carers at all stages of the caring role (for example at the beginning and 
end. There is a  turnover of a third each year)  

• carers caring for people at end of life and with palliative care needs 

• carers who themselves have an illness or disability, or a mental health 
problem or are dying 

• carers of different ages, (for example from 18 to over 90 years) 

• carers with different levels of income 

• carers in different housing circumstances 

• carers of people with different needs eg. who have; 
o dementia 
o HIV or AIDS 
o mental health issues and/or 
o misuse substances 
o learning disability  

• lesbian and gay carers 

• carers with cared for people in transition from Children to Adult Services 

• carers who are full-time, part-time or casual employees of the Council, 
health and voluntary and community sector organisations 

 

4 Links with the Other Strategies 
 
All strategies in Haringey which come under the Haringey Strategic Partnership 
(HSP) need to flow from the priorities of the HSP and its Sustainable Community 

All organisations who sign up to this strategy are committed, as service 
providers and employers, to ensuring that carers should not be discriminated 
against because of their caring responsibilities. We are also committed to 
ensuring that all carers have equality of access to services and support for 
their own needs and those of the people they support . 

Page 301

Page 39



 

 

26 

Strategy (SCS). Any strategies concerned with well-being need to reflect the 
outcomes of the Well-being Strategic Framework. All strategies in which 
Haringey Council is a partner need to reflect the Council priorities. In this way 
there should be a golden thread running through the work of all the partners from 
the strategic level to service level. The following section outlines how the Carers 
Strategy links with the SCS and WBSF. The aim is to ensure that all the 
organisations involved are committed to effective support for carers. 

4.1 Links with the Sustainable Community Strategy 

Haringey Strategic Partnership is responsible for the Sustainable Community 
Strategy in Haringey. Its vision is:  
 

“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to” 
 

The HSP has established six outcomes.  
 

The Well-being Partnership Board (WBPB) is a strategic body reporting to the 
HSP.  The WBPB contributes to all six outcomes and has adopted them as its 
priorities. Whilst all six outcomes are significant for carers, the Carers Partnership 
Board makes a key contribution to three of these outcomes in particular and 
reports to the WBPB. The following table below shows the links between the SCS 
priorities and the WBPB outcomes with the WBPB outcomes which have a 
particular relevance for carers in bold print. 
 
 

Sustainable Community 
Strategy Priorities 

Well-being Partnership Board Outcomes 

People at the heart of change Improved quality of life 
Making a positive contribution 
Freedom from discrimination or harassment 
Maintaining personal dignity and respect 
 

An environmentally sustainable 
future 

Improved quality of life  
Economic well-being 
 

Economic vitality and prosperity 
shared by all 

Improved quality of life  
Economic well-being 
 

Safer for all Improved quality of life 
Freedom from discrimination or harassment 
 

Healthier people with a better 
quality of life 

Improved health and emotional well-being 
Improved quality of life 
Increased choice and control  
Freedom from discrimination or harassment 
Maintaining personal dignity and respect 
 

Be people and customer focused Making a positive contribution 
 

Page 302

Page 40



 

 

27 

 

4.2 Links with Other Relevant Strategies 

 
 
Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-2010 outcome: Healthier people with a 
better quality of life  
Priority: 

• Support people to make healthy choices and lead healthy lives. 
Through improved community-based services we will support vulnerable 
members of the community so that they can remain at home and maintain their 
independence and we will give support and recognition to the role of carers. 
 
Haringey Council Plan Key Priorities 2007-2010 

• Encouraging lifetime well being at home, work, play and learning; 

• Promoting independent living while supporting adults and children when 
needed 
 
Key Well-Being Strategic Framework Outcomes 
Outcome 2-Improved Quality of Life 
Outcome 3-Making a positive contribution 
Outcome 4-Increased choice and control 
 
Corresponding national and other indicators 
Local Area Agreement Improvement Target  
Proposed Improvement Indicator: 
NI 135 Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer's 
service, or advice and information 
 

 

Page 303

Page 41



 

 

2
8
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
8
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
d
u
lt
 c
a
re
rs
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
a
re
rs
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 2
0
0
5
-2
0
0
8
 

  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 2
0
0
5
-2
0
0
8
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
e
c
te
d
 a
s
 e
x
p
e
rt
 c
a
re
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
lis
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

th
e
y
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 

ro
le
 

 

•
 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 
C
a
re
rs
’ 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 

•
 
V
o
ic
e
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
  

C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

 

•
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 n
e
e
d
s
 

•
 C
a
re
rs
’ 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 m
e
n
ta
lly
 

a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
lly
 w
e
ll 
a
n
d
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 

d
ig
n
it
y
 

 

•
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 C
a
re
rs
’ 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

n
o
t 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

 

•
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

•
 C
a
re
rs
’ 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

Page 304

Page 42



 

 

29 

4.2.1 Links with Haringey’s Well-being Strategic Framework  
 

The Well-being Strategic Framework brings together the many strategies and plans of 
all organisations in the borough which deal with well-being by bringing them together 
under a coherent framework, organised around the following outcomes:  
 

• Improved health and emotional well-being 

• Improved quality of life 

• Making a positive contribution 

• Increased choice and control 

• Freedom from discrimination or harassment 

• Economic well-being 

• Maintaining personal dignity and respect 
 

Outcomes, Objectives and Priorities 
 
The outcomes, objectives and priorities for carers in the Well-being Strategic 
Framework which are the responsibility of the Carers Partnership Board are as follows: 
Outcome 2: Improved quality of life for carers and cared for 
This means: 

• Access to leisure, social activities and life-long learning and to universal, public 
and commercial services 

• Security at home 

• Access to transport 

• Confidence in safety outside the home 
 

Our objective is: 
To promote opportunities for leisure, socialising and life long learning, and to ensure 
that people are able to get out and about and feel safe and confident, inside and outside 
their homes 
 
The priorities are to: 

• Promote cultural life and libraries as centres of learning, social, economic and  
cultural activity 

• Enhance future facilities for improving well-being 

• Enable people to undertake life-long learning opportunities 

• Develop a greater range of social activities within the community 

• Reduce fear of crime 

• Work to increase access to information technology (IT) for everyone 

• Improve transport in the borough so that people are able to get out and about 

• Improve sports and leisure provision 

• Enhance home care 

• Provide culturally appropriate support for carers, including preparing for when 
they are no longer able to care 

Page 305

Page 43



 

30 

• Increase opportunities for people who live independently in their own homes 
 
Outcome 3: Making a positive contribution 
This means: 

• Active participation in the community through employment or voluntary 
opportunities 

• Maintaining involvement in local activities and being involved in policy 
development and decision making 

  
Our objective is: 

• To encourage opportunities for active living including getting involved, influencing 
decisions and volunteering 

 
Our priorities are to: 

• Create opportunities for having a say in decision making  

• Promote user and carer involvement and engagement in service commissioning 
and delivery  

• Increase opportunities for volunteering 

• Ensure carers are involved in the support planning for the people they care for 
and empowered as a member of the care team 

 
 
Outcome 4: Increased choice and control 
This means: 

• Maximum independence 

• Access to information 

• Being able to choose and control services 

• Managing risk in personal life 
 

Our objective is: 
To enable people to live independently, exercising choice and control over their lives 
 
Our priorities are to: 

• Ensure service users and carers have a say, and are actively involved in 
developing their care plans  

• Provide culturally appropriate care in the community 

• Promote the use of direct payments as widely as possible 

• Further access to employment through individual budgets 

• Support individuals with long-term conditions in self-management 

• Develop housing-related support services for vulnerable people 
 
 
 
 

Page 306

Page 44



 

31 

5 Measuring Performance 
 

5.1 Links with Haringey’s Local Area Agreement 

 
What is a Local Area Agreement (LAA)? 
 
Following the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act (2007) and local 
government White Paper Creating Strong and Prosperous Communities (2007), all local 
areas were required by law to have an LAA in place by June 2008. An LAA is a three 
year agreement and medium term delivery plan for the local Sustainable Community 
Strategy. It contains the targets agreed between the Haringey Strategic Partnership and 
the Government Office for London that Haringey is responsible for attaining.  It can be 
found on the web at 
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/strategiesandpolicies/localareaagreement.htm 
 
The LAA target for carers 
Haringey’s LAA includes an improvement target for carers: 
 
By 2011 we will have increased by 25% the number of carers whose needs were 
assessed or reviewed by the council in a year who received a specific carer’s 
service, or advice and information in the same year as a percentage of people 
receiving a community based service in the year. 
 

The government’s rationale for having this indicator is because: 

Support for carers is a key part of support for vulnerable people. Support for carers 
also enables carers to continue with their lives, families, work and contribution to their 
community. This measure provides a measurement of engagement with, and support 
to, carers.  

Local Area Agreement Improvement Target  
Proposed Improvement Indicator: 
NI 135 Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer's service, or 
advice and information.  
 

5.3 Outcomes and Related Key Targets  

This section contains key targets which will measure overall performance within each 
outcome.  Other targets related to the key outcomes are included in the delivery plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 307

Page 45



 

32 

6 Outcomes and Priorities decided by carers 2009 – 2014 
and how these will be monitored 

 This section summarises how the strategy will be implemented. Full details are 
 in the  accompanying delivery plan. 

6.1 Outcome 1  
  
 
 
 

 
What this outcome means for the carers of Haringey 
 

•  To provide carers with support relevant to their age, gender, race, disability, sexuality  
and religion and the nature of the caring role 

 

Related Plans and Strategies 

Experience Still Counts 2009-2012  
 
Outcome 1 Priorities 2009 – 2014 decided by carers  
 

Outcome 1 
 

Key targets Carers Partnership 
Board  workstream 
responsible for 
monitoring targets 

Carers will be respected 
as expert care partners 
and will have access to 
the integrated and 
personalised services 
they need to support 
them in their caring role 
 

1.1  To promote recognition and 
respect for carers 
 

1.2  To promote awareness of 
carers as a disadvantaged group in 
their own right and of the inequality 
gap for carers 
 

1.3 To enable carers to access 
integrated and personalised 
services 
 

1.4 To develop an effective 

Information and 
Communication sub-
group 
 
Personalisation sub-
group 

Carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to the 
integrated and personalised services they need to support them in their caring 
role 

• To ensure recognition and respect for carers 

• To provide flexible support and breaks to enable carers to carry on caring 

• To ensure carers are involved in the support planning for the people they care for 

• To provide carers with clear information to make better choices about the support 
they need 

• To involve carers in planning and monitoring services 

• To ensure that all organisations supporting carers work together to provide 
personalised and culturally appropriate support 

Page 308

Page 46



 

33 

Outcome 1 
 

Key targets Carers Partnership 
Board  workstream 
responsible for 
monitoring targets 

protocol in place which establishes 
clear responsibilities for assessing 
the needs of, and providing support 
for, carers aged under 18 including 
the period of transition from 
Children to Adult Services. 
 
 

 
 

6.2 Outcome 2  

 
What this outcome means for the carers of Haringey 
 

• To provide support to enable carers to have a life apart from caring   
• To support carers’ education, training and employment and leisure needs  
 

Related Plans and Strategies 

Cultural Strategy 2009-2012 in development 

Flexible working scheme  Haringey Council 2007 

Haringey’s Housing Strategy 2009-2014 

 
Outcome 2 Priorities 2009 – 2014 decided by carers 
 

Outcome 2 
 

Key targets Carers Partnership 
Board  Workstream 
responsible for 
monitoring targets 

Carers will be able to 
have a life of their own 
alongside their caring 
role 
 

2.1 Ensure access to separate 
carer’s assessment and flexible 
carer’s service for eligible carers 
 
2.2 Increased number and 
availability of carers’  breaks 
 
2.3  Carers have confidence that 
they can be supported when they 
have an emergency 
 

Carers and current 
services sub-group 

 
 

Carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role  

Page 309

Page 47



 

34 

6.3 Outcome 3 

 
What this outcome means for the carers of Haringey 

 
 

Related Plans and Strategies 

Experience Still Counts 2009-2012  

Haringey Guarantee 2006 

Welfare to Work for the Disabled Strategy 2005-15 

Worklessness Statement 2007 

 
Outcome 3 Priorities 2009 – 2014 decided by carers 
 

Outcome 3 
 

Key targets Carers Partnership 
Board  Workstream 
responsible for 
monitoring targets 

Carers will be supported 
so that they are not 
forced into financial 
hardship by their caring 
role 
 

3.1 Carers supported with 
information and advice to maximise 
their income 
 
3.2 Carers supported to remain in 
or return to work 
 
3.3 Employees of Haringey Council 
who are carers are recognised and 
supported 
 

Access to education 
and employment 
sub-group 

 
 

6.4 Outcome 4 

 
What this outcome means for the carers of Haringey 

• To provide support for carers’ emotional and physical health 

• To treat carers with dignity 
 

Related Plans and Strategies 

Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust Mental Health Carers Strategy 

Carers will be supported so that they are not forced into financial hardship by their 
caring role 

• To provide carers with access to information and advice on income maximisation 

• To ensure that carers are enabled to choose to remain in, or return to, employment  

Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated with 
dignity 

Page 310

Page 48



 

35 

2007  
Domestic Violence and Gender-Based Violence Strategy 2008-2012 
Dying for a Drink: Haringey Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy 2008-2011 

Equal Opportunities Policy Haringey Council 2008 

Life Expectancy Action Plan 2007-10 
Haringey Joint Health and Social Care Mental Health Strategy 2005-2008 (being updated) 

Haringey Multi-Agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures 2008 

Personal and Sexual Relationships Policy (under development) 

Safer for All: Haringey’s Community Partnership Strategy 2008-2011 

 
 
 

Outcome 4 Priorities 2009 – 2014 decided by carers 
 

Outcome 4 
 

Key targets Carers Partnership 
Board  Workstream 
responsible for 
monitoring targets 

Carers will be supported 
to stay mentally and 
physically well and 
treated with dignity 
 

4.1 Carers can access a  
specialised carers’ service or 
resource centre 
                                                                 
4.2 Carers can access ongoing 
emotional support 
 
4.3 Carers can access health and 
well-being services 
 
4.4 Carers can access 
psychological support and 
counselling 
 
4.5 Carers can access training for 
care- giving 
                                                                        
4.6 Carers are recognised and  
supported in primary care             
 

Personalisation sub-
group 

 

 
 

7 Monitoring the Strategy 
 
The strategy will be reviewed after five years and the delivery plan every three years.  

Page 311

Page 49



 

36 

The Carers Partnership Board which reports to the Well-being Partnership Board will 
monitor the implementation of the strategy by: 
 

•  monitoring the delivery plan for the strategy and 

•  assisting in monitoring commissioning performance 
 

The Carers Partnership Board meets every two months and the Well-being Partnership 
Board  meets quarterly. 

Page 312

Page 50



 

 

37 

 

8 Bibliography  
 
Adult Social Care Scoping Report. Law Commission 2008 
http://www.lawcom.gov.uk/adult_social_care.htm 
 
Carers and their rights. Luke Clements Carers UK 2007 
http://www.carersuk.org/Policyandpractice/Delegateresources/Carersandtheirrights 
 
Carers at the heart of 21st century families and communities: a caring system on your 
side, a life of your own (National carers Strategy) DH 2008 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_085345 
 
Cross border carers’ assessments: A protocol for assessment of carers who live in a 
different local authority area to that of the person they care for. Greater London 
Authority 2006 

Drugs: Protecting families and communities.2008-2018 Strategy Home Office 2008 

http://drugs.homeoffice.gov.uk/drug-strategy/overview/ 
 
End of Life Care.  National Audit Office November 2008 
http://www.nao.org.uk/publications/0708/end_of_life_care.aspx 
 
End of Life Care Strategy: promoting high quality care for all adults at the end of life. 
2008 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_086277 
 
Every Child Matters: Change for Children. DfES 2004 
http://www.everychildmatters.gov.uk/ 
 
Healthcare for London: a Framework for Action. NHS London 2008 
http://www.healthcareforlondon.nhs.uk/framework_for_action.asp 
 
How good is your service to carers? Kings Fund 2002 
 
New Deal for Carers  
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Policyandguidance/Organisationpolicy/Healthreform/NewDealf
orCarers/DH_075478 
 
The NHS in England: The operating framework for 2009/10 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_091445

Page 313

Page 51



 

 

38 

 
 
No Secrets: Guidance on developing Multi-Agency Policies and Procedures to Protect 
Vulnerable Adults DH 2000 
No Secrets: Guidance on developing Multi-Agency Policies and Procedures to Protect 
Vulnerable Adults from Abuse  
 
Our Health, Our Care, Our Say: A New Direction for Community Services DH 2006 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/Ourhealthourcareoursay/index.htm 
 
Putting people first: A Shared Vision and Commitment to the Transformation of Adult 
Social Care. DH 2007 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndgui
dance/DH_081118 
 

Personalisation toolkit DH 2008 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_081118 
 
Reaching out: An Action Plan for Social Exclusion. Cabinet Office 2008 
http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/social_exclusion_task_force/publications/reaching_out.a
spx 
 
Safeguarding adults: A Study of the Effectiveness of Arrangements to Safeguard Adults 
from Abuse. CSCI 2008 
http://www.csci.gov.uk/about_us/publications/safeguarding_adults.aspx 
 
Service Needs and Delivery Following the Onset of Caring amongst Children and 
Young Adults: Evidenced Based Review. Saul Becker & Fiona Becker, Commission for 
Rural Communities 
http://www.ruralcommunities.gov.uk/files/CRC%20web36%20YCIRE.pdf 
 
Supporting and Involving Carers: A guide for Commissioners and Providers. National 
Treatment Agency for Substance Misuse 2008. 
http://www.nta.nhs.uk/areas/users_and_carers/publications/supporting_and_involving_c
arers_10.08.pdf 
 
Supporting people with long term conditions: commissioning personalised care planning 
- a guide for commissioners 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_093354 
 
Standing Commission on carers 
http://www.gnn.gov.uk/environment/fullDetail.asp?ReleaseID=311742&NewsAreaID=2&
NavigatedFromDepartment=True 

Page 314

Page 52



 

 

39 

 
Valuing Carers-Calculating the value of unpaid care 
http://www.carersuk.org/Newsandcampaigns/Valuingcarers/Fullreport 
 
Valuing people now: a new three-year strategy for people with learning disabilities. DH 
2009 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGu
idance/DH_093377 
 
Young Adult Carers in the UK: Experiences, Needs and Services for Carers aged 16-
24. Becker, F and S. The Princess Royal Trust for Carers 
http://static.carers.org/files/yac20report-final-241008-3787.pdf 

Page 315

Page 53



 

 

40 

 
 

9 Glossary  
 

ABG   Area Based Grant 
ACCS   Adult, Culture & Community Services 
 

BCHS   Better Care, Higher Standards 
BEHMHT  Barnet, Enfield & Haringey Mental Health Trust 
BME   Black & Minority Ethnic 
 

CPB   Carers Partnership Board 
 

DAAT   Drugs and Alcohol Action Team 
DH    Department of Health 
 

EIA   Equalities Impact Assessment 
EoL   End of Life 
 

GHS   General Household Survey  
GP   General Practitioner 
 

HAVCO  Haringey Association of Voluntary and Community    
  Organisations 
HSP   Haringey Strategic Partnership 
HTPCT  Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust, now called NHS Haringey 
 

JSNA   Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 

LAA   Local Area Agreement 
LSP   Local Strategic Partnership 
LTC   Long Term Conditions 
LGBT   Lesbian, Gay, Bi-sexual and Transgender 
 

NI   National Indicator 
NHS   National Health Service 
NHS  Haringey The name for the former Haringey Teaching Primary Care   
   Trust since April 1 2009 
 

OHOCOS  Our Health, Our Care, Our Say 
ONS   Office for National Statistics 
OT   Occupational Therapy 
 

PAF   Performance Assessment Framework 
PCT   Primary Care Trust  
Personalisation The government programme to give people more control over their  
  care and support by giving them Personal Budgets to choose how   
  to spend on their support 

Page 316

Page 54



 

 

41 

 
 
RSL   Registered Social Landlord 
 

SAB   Safeguarding Adults Board 
SAP   Single Assessment Process 
SARA   Self-Assessment, Rapid Access 
SCS   Sustainable Community Strategy 
SDC   Self-Directed Care 
SDS   Self-Directed Support 
SOVA    Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 
 

VCS   Voluntary & Community Sector 
WBPB   Well-being Partnership Board 
WBSF   Well-being Strategic Framework

Page 317

Page 55



 

42 

Appendix A: Needs Assessment - Setting the Scene for the 
Strategy   
 

Key Statistics 

• Haringey’s population is projected to expand by 6.6% or 14,900 residents by 
2029, according to the Office of National Statistics projections (2004 sub-
national population projections) and by 10.6% or 23,800 residents by 2031 
according to the GLA projections (2005) estimates. 

• The male population of Haringey is expected to grow faster than the female 
population; by 2029 there will be 6,400 more males than females in the 
borough. 

• There will be a general shift upwards in the average age of Haringey’s 
population over the next 25 years; the number of those aged between 40 to 
69 will grow by 26.7%: that is 17,500 residents. 

•  34.4% of Haringey’s population belong to a Black and Ethnic Minority group. 

• Haringey ranks as the fifth most diverse borough in London. 

• Almost 50% of residents born outside the UK are from Asia and Africa. 

• The top five countries of birth for new national insurance  registrations are 
Poland, Turkey, Italy, France and Australia with Hungary and Lithuania 
increasingly important. 

• There is a distinct polarisation, in terms of ‘social grade’, between the east 
and the west of the borough. 

• Almost 30% of Haringey’s households have dependent children and 13.6% of 
all households are lone parent households. There are projected growths in 
households by 2026 of lone parent households (+45%) and cohabiting 
couples (+118%). Married couple households will fall by 34%. 

• 952 people in Haringey were living in a same-sex relationship in 200136 

• There were 31 civil partnerships in Haringey in December 2005, when civil 
partnerships became legal37, 188 in 200638 and 40 in 200739 

• Haringey has high levels of mental ill-health40. Mental ill-health is particularly 
common in some of Haringey’s newer refugee communities whose members 
may have experienced trauma in their home countries 

• The prevalence of limiting long-term illness and disability in Haringey is 
similar to its prevalence across London as a whole (Census 2001) 

• There are larger than average numbers of households living in private rented 
accommodation in Haringey, compared with London as a whole, but in 
Haringey RSL housing is increasing  in importance. 

                                                 
36
http://neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk/dissemination/LeadTableView.do?a=7&b=276756&c=Haringey&d=13&e=16&
g=335694&i=1001x1003x1004&m=0&enc=1&dsFamilyId=201 
37
 http://www.gro.gov.uk/Images/CP_PR_31Jan06_tcm69-31882.pdf 

38 http://www.statistics.gov.uk/downloads/theme_population/Tables_2_to_5_Area.xls 
39 http://www.statistics.gov.uk/statbase/Product.asp?vlnk=14675 
40 Haringey Public Health Report 2004 

Page 318

Page 56



 

43 

• ‘Black and Black British’ households are more likely than other  groups to be 
living in social rented housing. 

• ‘White – Other’ households are particularly likely to live in the private rented 
sector. ‘White – British’ and ‘Asian and Asian British’ households are most 
likely to be owner-occupier. 

• The average home in Haringey cost  £328,176 in February 2009 

• The £27, 368, average gross household income in Haringey is  lower than 
the London average of £28,772. 

• 46% of households do not have access to a car, compared with 37% 
inLondon. 

• Since 2002/3 there has been a 102% increase in alcohol related hospital 
admissions in the NHS Haringey area.41   

                                                 
41 Source North West Public Health Observatory. Available: http://www.nwph.net/alcohol/lape/index.htm 

Page 319

Page 57



 

 

44 

 

Appendix B: Lead Contacts for Each Outcome  
People to lead on each of the proposed outcomes need to be decided.  Each lead person can 
serve as a single point of contact for any queries on different aspects of the strategy. 

 
Outcomes Lead/Organisation Contact Details 

Outcome 1 
Carers will be 
respected as expert 
care partners and 
will have access to 
the integrated and 
personalised 
services they need 
to support them in 
their caring role 
 

To be decided To be decided 

Outcome 2,  
Carers will be able to 
have a life of their 
own alongside their 
caring role 

To be decided To be decided 

Outcome 3 
Carers will be 
supported to stay 
mentally and 
physically well and 
treated with dignity 

To be decided To be decided 

Outcome 4 
Carers will be 
supported so that 
they are not forced 
into financial hardship 
by their caring role 

To be decided To be decided 

 

Appendix C: Development of the Strategy 
This strategy has been developed by the Carers Partnership Board, a sub-group of 
Haringey Strategic Partnership’s Group Well-being Partnership Board. 

Page 320

Page 58



 

 

45 

Appendix D: Consultation about the Strategy 
 
The consultation on the strategy started in January 2009 with a questionnaire on 
strategy goals to carers via GPs surgeries, community groups, libraries, and all carers 
on Carers Register. The consultation day looked in more detail at ideas for the delivery 
plan for the strategy, how we can all work to support carers over the next three years. 
 
Consultation Day Monday 23 March 
 
Over eighty carers took part in the Consultation Day at Bruce Castle Museum on 
Monday 23 March, with senior managers from ACCS, NHS Haringey, Haringey 
Association of Voluntary and Community Organisations and the elected member who is 
the Carers Champion. 
 
Carers from the Carers Partnership Board, which is chaired by the Carers Champion, 
were involved in planning the discussion topics for the day under the outcomes for 
adults of the National Carers Strategy, which they had agreed as outcomes for 
Haringey’s strategy. The outcomes are:  
 

Outcome 1 
Carers will be respected as expert care partners and will have access to the integrated 
and personalised services they need to support them in their caring role. 
 

Outcome 2 
Carers will be able to have a life of their own alongside their caring role  
 

Outcome 3 
Carers will be supported so that they are not forced into financial hardship by their 
caring role  
 

Outcome 4 
Carers will be supported to stay mentally and physically well and treated with dignity 
 
Group discussions 
Each group took one outcome and identified practical suggestions for how carers’ 
needs under that outcome can be met. The suggestions will be included in the Delivery 
Plan for the revised Haringey Carers Strategy. Implementation will depend on funding 
being identified.  
 
Ask the Audience 
This interactive session, run by the Council Consultation team, elicited carers’ views in 
confidence about specific suggestions for carer support. 
 
The results of the consultation are informing the strategy, the Equalities Impact 
Assessment and the delivery plan. 

Page 321

Page 59



Page 322

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



   
 

  
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
a
re
rs
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

u
n
p
a
id
 a
d
u
lt
 c
a
re
rs
 

 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

 
in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
v
ie
w
s
 f
ro
m
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 

Page 323

Page 61



   
2

 

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 1
: 
B
E
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D

 

C
a

re
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
s

 e
x

p
e

rt
 c

a
re

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
o

le
 K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
S
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

1
.1
 T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo
r 
c
a
re
rs
 

 1
.1

(i
) 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

 h
id

d
e

n
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e

m
s

e
lv

e
s

 
a

s
 c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 c

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 p
re

s
s

 a
n

d
 m

e
d

ia
 

c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
c

a
re

rs
’ 

e
v

e
n

ts
, 

la
u

n
c

h
 o

f 
n

e
w

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

C
a

re
r 

o
f 

th
e

 Y
e

a
r 

A
w

a
rd

 e
tc

 

•
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
rs

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

a
s

 a
 m

e
a

n
s

 o
f 

n
e

tw
o

rk
in

g
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h

 
b

o
ro

u
g

h
-w

id
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c

c
e

s
s

in
g

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
d

is
c

o
u

n
ts

  

•
 

 T
ra

in
 f

ro
n

t 
lin

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
c

ro
s

s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 N
H

S
, 

M
H

 T
ru

s
t,

 H
o

m
e

s
 

fo
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 a

n
d

 J
o

b
c

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
  

to
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
p

o
s

t 
c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

N
o

m
in

a
te

 c
a

re
rs

 c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

 i
n

 k
e

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
 e

.g
. 

G
P

 r
e

c
e

p
ti

o
n

s
, 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

L
ib

ra
ry

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 d
e

s
k

s
, 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 A

d
u

lt
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

H
A

L
S

) 

•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 G

P
 p

ro
to

c
o

l 
fo

r 
re

fe
rr

in
g

 c
a

re
rs

 t
o

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

  W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

 P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

in
 n

e
w

ly
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

s
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 o
n

 
C

a
re

rs
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
 B

a
s

e
lin

e
 2

0
0

8
-9

: 
1

2
8

3
 c

a
re

rs
 o

n
 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

@
3

1
.3

.’
0

9
 

  P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

in
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 o
n

 
C

a
re

rs
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a

s
 

in
d

ic
a

to
r 

o
f 

re
a

c
h

 o
f 

k
e

y
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 

 B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
: 

 
1

2
8

3
 c

a
re

rs
 o

n
 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

@
 3

1
.3

.’
0

9
 

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
, 

C
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(A
C

C
S

) 
 A

s
s

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir

e
c

to
r,

 A
d

u
lt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

C
C

S
 

 D
e

p
u

ty
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
-

b
a

s
e

d
 a

n
d

 A
c

u
te

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 N

H
S

 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 

B
a

rn
e

t,
 E

n
fi

e
ld

 a
n

d
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

T
ru

s
t 

 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 

1
.1

(i
i)

  
R

e
a

c
h

 o
u

t 
to

 h
id

d
e

n
 c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tr
e

a
c

h
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
r-

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 w
a

rd
s

 w
it

h
 h

ig
h

 c
o

n
c

e
n

tr
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

E
x

te
n

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 f

o
r 

C
a

re
rs

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

m
a

ili
n

g
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 (
L

B
H

/N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

/M
H

 T
ru

s
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 t
e

a
m

s
 &

 C
V

S
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 i

n
c

. 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 ‘

h
id

d
e

n
’ 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
w

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

 W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

  A
s

 a
b

o
v

e
 

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

A
C

C
S

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 s
u

b
-

g
ro

u
p

 

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 

 1
.1

(i
ii)

 B
ri

n
g

 a
b

o
u

t 
o

r 
a

c
c

e
le

ra
te

 c
u

lt
u

re
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i

n
 a

tt
it

u
d

e
s

 a
n

d
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
N

I 
4

: 
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
 

Page 324

Page 62



   
3

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 1
: 
B
E
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D

 

C
a

re
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
s

 e
x

p
e

rt
 c

a
re

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
o

le
 K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
S
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 t
o

w
a

rd
s

 c
a

re
rs

  

•
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 r
a

is
in

g
 o

f 
c

a
re

rs
’ 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

t 
s

o
c

ie
ta

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

le
v

e
ls

 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

  
‘D

a
y

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l

if
e

’ 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 m
e

a
n

s
 o

f 
a

tt
ra

c
ti

n
g

 
p

u
b

lic
 i

n
te

re
s

t 
/c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s

 v
ia

 l
o

c
a

l 
m

e
d

ia
 

•
 

T
ra

in
 c

a
re

rs
 a

s
 t

ra
in

e
rs
 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 p
re

s
e

n
t/

c
o

-p
re

s
e

n
t 

c
a

re
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 

o
u

t 
to

 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e

 s
ta

ff
 -

s
e

e
 1

.1
(i

) 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

 
w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 i

n
 

th
e

ir
 l

o
c

a
lit

y
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

: 
4

0
.5

%
 

(2
0

0
8

 P
la

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
) 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

: 
4

2
.9

%
 

2
0

1
0

-1
1

: 
4

5
.1

%
 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

: 
tb

c
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

C
a

re
rs

 C
e

n
tr

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 

M
e

d
ia

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
 

R
e

la
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

s
: 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 

N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 

B
a

rn
e

t,
 E

n
fi

e
ld

 a
n

d
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 

T
ru

s
t 

 M
a

k
in

g
 a

 
p

o
s

it
iv

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

1
.1

(i
v

) 
 I

n
c

re
a

s
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 i
n

 
d

e
c

is
io

n
-m

a
k

in
g

 

•
 

In
c

lu
d

e
 c

a
re

rs
 i

n
 U

s
e

r 
P

a
y

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
y

 r
o

ll-
o

u
t 

to
 r

e
c

o
g

n
is

e
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

•
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

r 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
P

B
 

•
 

E
n

a
b

le
 c

a
re

r 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
C

P
B

 t
o

 a
c

t 
a

s
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

s
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
 

  
  

  
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
s

 o
f 

th
e

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

H
S

P
) 

 

•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

a
re

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

P
B

 i
n

 F
e

b
.’

1
0

 a
n

d
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
fo

rm
a

l 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

•
 

O
ff

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
it

h
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
tr

a
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 &

 i
n

te
rp

re
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 

re
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
c

a
re

 a
s

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 t
o

 a
ll 

c
a

re
rs

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i

n
 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

v
e

 f
o

ru
m

s
 

•
 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 a

re
a

 
a

s
s

e
m

b
lie

s
, 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v

ie
w

s
, 

N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 T

h
e

m
e

 G
ro

u
p

s
 

•
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
ro

le
s

 o
f 

L
IN

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

in
k

 
F

o
ru

m
  

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

   

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
4

: 
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
h

o
 f

e
e

l 
th

e
y

 c
a

n
 

in
fl

u
e

n
c

e
 d

e
c

is
io

n
s

 i
n

 
th

e
ir

 l
o

c
a

lit
y

 
B

a
s

e
lin

e
: 

4
0

.5
%

 
(2

0
0

8
 P

la
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

) 
2

0
0

9
-1

0
: 

4
2

.9
%

 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
: 

4
5

.1
%

 
2

0
1

1
-1

2
: 

tb
c

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

A
C

C
S

 

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 A
d

u
lt

s
 a

n
d

 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

  
N

H
S

 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y
 

C
o

-c
h

a
ir

s
, 

M
a

k
in

g
 a

 
P

o
s

it
iv

e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 s
u

b
-

g
ro

u
p

, 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

H
S

P
) 

 D
ir

e
c

to
r,

 B
la

c
k

 a
n

d
 

M
in

o
ri

ty
  

E
th

n
ic

 C
a

re
rs

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 a
n

d
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 U
n

it
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 

M
a

k
in

g
 a

 
p

o
s

it
iv

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

Page 325

Page 63



   
4

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 1
: 
B
E
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D

 

C
a

re
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
s

 e
x

p
e

rt
 c

a
re

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
o

le
 K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
S
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

1
.2
 T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 a
 d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 r
ig
h
t 
a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
e
q
u
a
li
ty
 g
a
p
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
rs
 

1
.2

(i
) 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t,

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
to

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
c

a
re

rs
: 

T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
 

•
 

R
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

th
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

h
a

t 
c

a
ri

n
g

 c
re

a
te

s
 t

o
 m

o
re

 e
q

u
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

J
o

in
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

n
e

e
d

s
 

•
 

E
s

ta
b

lis
h

 a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
d

e
fi

n
it

io
n

 o
f 

te
rm

 ‘
c

a
re

r’
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

•
 

In
c

lu
s

io
n

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 a
s

 a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s

 s
tr

a
n

d
 i

n
 E

q
u

a
l 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 P
o

lic
ie

s
 

•
 

‘C
a

re
r 

p
ro

o
fi

n
g

’ 
(i

m
p

a
c

t 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t)
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
, 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
  

•
 

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 f
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 e

m
p

lo
y

e
rs

 w
h

o
s

e
 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v

e
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti

e
s

  

•
 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

a
re

rs
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

4
0

 F
a

ir
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

b
y

 l
o

c
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

B
a

s
e

lin
e

:6
0

.4
%

 
(2

0
0

8
 P

la
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

) 
2

0
0

9
-1

0
: 

6
2

.6
%

 
2

0
1

0
-1

1
: 

6
5

%
 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

: 
tb

c
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

A
C

C
S

 
 C

a
re

rs
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

, 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

 A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
A

d
u

lt
s

 a
n

d
 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
, 

N
H

S
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

  

F
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 
o

r 
h

a
ra

s
s

m
e

n
t 

1
.3
 T
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 c
a
re
rs
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
li
s
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
.3

 (
i)

 I
n

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti

o
n

, 
e

n
s

u
re

 c
a

re
rs

 c
a

n
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

  
re

lia
b

le
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
e

n
 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 i

t 
  

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

C
P

B
  

to
 l

e
a

d
 o

n
  

re
v

ie
w

 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
ff

e
r 

(v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

) 

•
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

  
s

e
t 

in
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 f

o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

  

•
 

M
a

in
ta

in
 C

a
re

rs
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a

s
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 n

e
w

ly
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 
c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
lly

 t
a

ilo
re

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

U
p

d
a

te
 t

h
e

 E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
G
u
id
e
 f
o
r 
C
a
re
rs
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 i

n
 p

a
p

e
r 

fo
rm

a
ts

 

•
 

E
n

s
u

re
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
k

e
y

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 p
o

in
ts

: 
G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri

e
s

, 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

3
5

  
C

a
re

rs
 

re
c

e
iv

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 

2
2

.2
%

 

(8
4

4
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
+

 3
2

0
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

) 

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

  

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

  

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

Page 326

Page 64



   
5

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 1
: 
B
E
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D

 

C
a

re
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
s

 e
x

p
e

rt
 c

a
re

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
o

le
 K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
S
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
d

is
c

h
a

rg
e

, 
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
, 

c
a

ll 
c

e
n

tr
e

, 
lib

ra
ri

e
s

, 
A

d
u

lt
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
s

 

•
 

M
a

rk
e

t 
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 t
o

 o
v

e
rc

o
m

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s

 t
h

a
t 

it
 m

e
a

n
s

 
e

x
tr

a
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

m
  

 

1
.3

(i
i)

  
W

it
h

 t
h

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
v

id
e

 a
 ”

u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
o

ff
e

r”
 

o
f 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

  
s

e
rv

ic
e

  
fo

r 
c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h

 d
if

fe
ri

n
g

 n
e

e
d

s
: 

 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
in

g
le

 s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 s

a
v

e
 c

a
re

rs
’ 

ti
m

e
  

 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
-b

a
s

e
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  

  
 

•
 

P
u

b
lic

is
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
lp

lin
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
b

 s
e

rv
ic

e
  

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

, 
 

L
G

B
T

 c
a

re
rs

, 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 c

a
re

rs
, 

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 w
o

m
e

n
 c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

ra
n

s
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

 a
c

c
e

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

rm
a

ts
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

3
5

  
C

a
re

rs
 

re
c

e
iv

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 

2
2

.2
%

 

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r,
 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
, 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

 A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

1
.3

 (
iii

) 
T

o
 e

n
s

u
re

 c
a

re
rs

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

h
o

ic
e

 o
f 

m
o

d
e

rn
is

e
d

, 
re

lia
b

le
, 

c
u

lt
u

ra
lly

 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
 a

n
d

 i
n

s
p

ir
e

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e
 

•
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 p
la

n
s

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
’ 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

y
c

le
  

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 

•
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 
a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

.e
. 

b
ro

k
e

ra
g

e
, 

a
d

v
o

c
a

c
y

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 

c
a

ri
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
  

  

•
 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
, 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
p

o
s

ti
n

g
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 

in
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 

•
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 e

.g
. 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
  

o
f 

c
a

re
rs

’ 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

•
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 g

a
p

s
 i

n
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

h
a

t 
c

a
n

 b
e

 f
ill

e
d

  
  

 W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

  

 C
a

re
r 

U
s

e
r 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 (
p

ilo
t)

:t
o

 b
e

 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

 N
I1

3
0

 S
o

c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 
c

lie
n

ts
 r

e
c

e
iv

in
g

 S
e

lf
 

D
ir

e
c

te
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
: 

7
1

7
 c

a
re

rs
 

 

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

A
C

C
S

 

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
, 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 

 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 

 In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

    

1
.3

 (
iv

) 
T

o
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 p
ro

to
c

o
l 

w
h

ic
h

 e
s

ta
b

lis
h

e
s

 c
le

a
r 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
s

s
e

s
s

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s

 o
f,

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r,

 
c

a
re

rs
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
it

io
n

 f
ro

m
 C

h
ild

re
n

 t
o

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

 

Page 327

Page 65



   
6

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 1
: 
B
E
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
E
C
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
P
P
O
R
T
E
D

 

C
a

re
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

s
p

e
c

te
d

 a
s

 e
x

p
e

rt
 c

a
re

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v

e
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 r
o

le
 K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
S
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

 

 

P
e

o
p

le
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 

 

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 2
: 
B
A
L
A
N
C
IN
G
 C
A
R
IN
G
 W
IT
H
 A
 L
IF
E
 A
P
A
R
T
 F
R
O
M
 C
A
R
IN
G
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

2
.1
 E
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 c
a
re
r’
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
le
x
ib
le
 c
a
re
r’
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
e
li
g
ib
le
 c
a
re
rs
 

2
.1

(i
) 

E
n

s
u

re
 h

o
lis

ti
c

 c
a

re
r’

s
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

ff
e

re
d

 a
s

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 b

y
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

&
 c

a
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
s

 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

re
a

s
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
d

e
c

lin
in

g
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
c

a
re

r’
s

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 

o
n

 E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 R

e
c

o
rd

 (
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

-i
) 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

ly
 s

ig
n

p
o

s
te

d
 t

o
 d

ir
e

c
t 

a
c

c
e

s
s

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 c
o

p
y

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
ld

 w
h

a
t 

w
ill

 
h

a
p

p
e

n
 n

e
x

t 

•
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

(i
n

c
. 

D
ir

e
c

t 
P

a
y

m
e

n
ts

) 
fo

r 
c

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 

c
a

re
r 

ro
u

ti
n

e
ly

 d
is

c
u

s
s

e
d

 

•
 

W
h

e
re

 a
 c

a
re

d
 f

o
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
s

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 w

h
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
a

n
d

 
s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti

a
l 

c
a

re
 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 c
a

re
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 /

re
v

ie
w

s
 

a
n

d
 t

o
ld

 w
h

a
t 

w
ill

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 n
e

x
t 

•
 

R
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
u

n
m

e
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

 W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

C
a

re
rs

 U
s

e
r 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 
B

a
s

e
lin

e
 (

p
ilo

t)
: 

to
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

 N
I 

1
3

5
  

C
a

re
rs

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 

c
a

re
r’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

r 
a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 

2
2

.2
%

 

 N
I1

3
0

 S
o

c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 
c

lie
n

ts
 r

e
c

e
iv

in
g

 S
e

lf
 

D
ir

e
c

te
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
: 

7
1

7
 c

a
re

rs
 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
d

u
lt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 

 In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

 

Page 328

Page 66



   
7

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 2
: 
B
A
L
A
N
C
IN
G
 C
A
R
IN
G
 W
IT
H
 A
 L
IF
E
 A
P
A
R
T
 F
R
O
M
 C
A
R
IN
G
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

 

2
.1

(i
i)

 D
e

le
g

a
te

d
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
‘h

id
d

e
n

’ 
c

a
re

rs
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e

c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

•
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 e

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

d
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
, 

c
a

re
rs

’ 
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
  

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

•
 

S
e

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

 

•
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
  

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 
y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
 C

a
re

rs
 U

s
e

r 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 (
p

ilo
t)

:t
o

 b
e

 
c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

A
C

C
S

 

C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 
s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 o
n

 C
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
(i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 T
ra

n
s

it
io

n
) 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 

2
.1

(i
ii)

 I
n

c
re

a
s

e
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 f

o
rc

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

in
g

 c
a

re
r 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
ts

  

•
 

C
a

re
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 i
n

 i
n

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 s

ta
ff

 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i

n
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 s

h
o

rt
 c

o
u

rs
e

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

•
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 i

n
 t

e
a

m
s

 

•
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 o
n

  
c

a
re

r 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
n

in
g

  

•
 

C
a

re
rs

’ 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
m

 (
b

e
y

o
n

d
 b

re
a

k
s

) 
 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

’ 
ri

g
h

t 
to

 a
n

 o
rd

in
a

ry
 f

a
m

ily
 l

if
e

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
fa

m
ily

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 i

n
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

  

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
C

a
re

rs
 U

s
e

r 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

(p
ilo

t)
: 

to
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

    

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

A
C

C
S

 

O
D

 &
 L

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t 
S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 S

e
c

to
r 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
y

s
te

m
s

 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 A
C

C
S

 

 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 
     

2
.1

 (
iii

) 
M

a
k

e
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s

e
lf

-d
ir

e
c

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
fo

r 
c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

In
v

o
lv

e
 c

a
re

rs
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

lf
-a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

n
a

ir
e

 (
S

A
Q

) 

•
 

H
o

ld
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 s
e

s
s

io
n

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

je
c

ts
 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 a
b

o
u

t 
s

e
lf

-d
ir

e
c

te
d

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
  

a
n

d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 

a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

te
le

c
a

re
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
o

a
d

s
h

o
w

  

•
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
s

 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

it
y

 

•
 

C
o

n
s

id
e

r 
p

e
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 
c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

s
 

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

3
5

  
C

a
re

rs
 

re
c

e
iv

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 

2
2

.2
%

 

 C
a

re
rs

 U
s

e
r 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 s

u
rv

e
y

 
b

a
s

e
lin

e
: 

to
 b

e
 

c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

A
C

C
S

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 
P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti

o
n

  

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

2
.2
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
’ 
 b
re
a
k
s
 

2
.2

(i
) 

J
o

in
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
a

n
d

 N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 t
o

 u
s

e
 

p
o

o
le

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 b
re

a
k

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

: 
W

it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

N
I 

1
1

9
 S

e
lf

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

Page 329

Page 67



   
8

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 2
: 
B
A
L
A
N
C
IN
G
 C
A
R
IN
G
 W
IT
H
 A
 L
IF
E
 A
P
A
R
T
 F
R
O
M
 C
A
R
IN
G
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

•
 

S
h

o
rt

 b
re

a
k

s
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 i

n
-h

o
m

e
 r

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
c

a
re

  

•
 

S
h

o
rt

 b
re

a
k

s
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 c

a
re

rs
’ 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

: 
s

o
c

ia
l 

a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
, 

p
a

m
p

e
ri

n
g

, 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
k

ill
s

 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
(d

ir
e

c
t 

a
c

c
e

s
s

) 

•
 

O
v

e
rn

ig
h

t 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

re
  

•
 

R
o

lli
n

g
 b

re
a

k
s

  

•
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
re

a
k

s
 v

ia
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a

re
 p

a
c

k
a

g
e

 o
r 

re
s

id
e

n
ti

a
l 

re
s

p
it

e
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
d

 f
o

r 

•
 

F
le

x
ib

le
 c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 u
s

e
d

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 b
re

a
k

 

•
 

E
x

p
lo

re
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 m

o
d

e
ls

 f
o

r 
b

re
a

k
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 e

.g
. 

c
a

re
rs

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 

w
it

h
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 T
im

e
 B

a
n

k
 a

c
c

ru
e

 c
re

d
it

 w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 b

e
 e

x
c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 f
o

r 
b

re
a

k
s

, 
H

o
m

e
S

h
a

re
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

 r
e

s
p

it
e

 (
R

e
d

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

ro
s

s
ro

a
d

s
),

 
b

re
a

k
s

 f
u

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 b
y

 c
a

re
rs

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

P
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 u
p

ta
k

e
 o

f 
d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 

c
a

re
rs

 f
le

x
ib

le
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

v
e

r 
b

re
a

k
s

 

  
o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
B

a
s

e
lin

e
 2

0
0

8
-9

 8
0

%
 

 N
I 

1
3

5
  

C
a

re
rs

 
re

c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 

c
a

re
r’

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
o

r 
a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 
2

2
.2

%
 

 

A
C

C
S

  

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 

e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 
 In

c
re

a
s

e
d

 
c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

2
.3
  
C
a
re
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y

 

2
.3

(i
) 

 M
a

in
s

tr
e

a
m

 p
la

n
n

in
g

  
fo

r 
a

 c
a

re
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

 w
it

h
in

 c
a

re
r’

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

e
lf

-a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

•
 

R
e

d
e

s
ig

n
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

e
s

 

•
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

 b
ri

e
fi

n
g

s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

•
 

E
n

s
u

re
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
k

e
y

 a
c

c
e

s
s

 p
o

in
ts

: 
G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri

e
s

, 
h

o
s

p
it

a
l 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
, 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

, 
c

a
ll 

c
e

n
tr

e
, 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

A
d

u
lt

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 

a
n

d
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

s
it

e
 

•
 

C
o

lle
c

t 
a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
e

 d
a

ta
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
a

re
rs

’ 
n

e
e

d
s

 f
o

r 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

re
 

to
 i

n
fo

rm
 f

u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

3
5

  
C

a
re

rs
 

re
c

e
iv

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 :
 2

0
0

8
-9

 

2
2

.2
%

 

 N
I 

1
2

7
 S

e
lf

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

e
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 o

f 
s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 

N
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
ill

 e
n

d
 

o
f 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 A

la
rm

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

  
 In

c
re

a
s

e
d

 
c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

 

Page 330

Page 68



   
9

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 3
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 S
E
C
U
R
IT
Y
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le

 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
  

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

3
.1
 C
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

3
.1

(i
) 

C
a

re
rs

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

a
d

y
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 w

e
lf

a
re

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
d

v
ic

e
: 

 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

  
a

re
 w

e
ll 

p
u

b
lic

is
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 
(t

im
e

/g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 

lo
c

a
ti

o
n

) 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
re

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s

u
re

d
 

•
 

C
a

re
r 

s
p

e
c

if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
re

 f
le

x
ib

le
 (

h
o

m
e

/t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

/o
ff

ic
e

 
a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

) 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 w

it
h

 f
o

rm
-f

ill
in

g
 

•
 

R
e

a
c

h
 o

u
t 

to
 u

n
d

e
r-

s
e

rv
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s

 

•
 

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
p

e
c

ia
l 

e
v

e
n

ts
 e

.g
. 

C
a

re
rs

 R
ig

h
ts

 
D

a
y

 

•
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

  
N

I 
1

2
7

 S
e

lf
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 

N
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
ill

 e
n

d
 

o
f 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

 
 C

a
re

r 
U

s
e

r 
E

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 (
p

ilo
t)

:t
o

 b
e

 
c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

  
 B

e
tt

e
r 

o
ff

 
c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s

  

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

L
e

a
d

s
 

 A
g

e
 C

o
n

c
e

rn
 

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
n

d
 L

o
c

a
l 

T
a

x
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

3
.1

(i
i)

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 

a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

u
n

 t
h

e
m

e
d

 
e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 e

.g
. 
M
a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 c

a
re

rs
’ 

m
a

te
ri

a
l 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts
 

•
 

P
ro

to
c

o
l 

fo
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

g
e

n
c

y
 

•
 

In
c

lu
d

e
 c

a
re

rs
 i

n
 C

la
im

 i
t 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 

•
 

In
v

e
s

ti
g

a
te

 p
o

s
s

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
c

ro
s

s
-r

e
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

s
 

(D
W

P
/H

o
m

e
s

 f
o

r 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

/H
o

u
s

in
g

 A
s

s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
s

/C
a

re
rs

 R
e

g
is

te
r)

 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 c
a

re
r 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

a
n

ti
-p

o
v

e
rt

y
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 (

W
a

rm
 

F
ro

n
t 

S
c

h
e

m
e

, 
D

e
c

e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
s

 e
tc

) 
a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

o
ff

 
c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
s

 
F

in
a

n
c

e
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
a

n
d

 H
e

a
lt

h
, 

U
rb

a
n

 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

  

3
.2
 C
a
re
rs
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 o
r 
re
tu
rn
 t
o
 w
o
rk

  

3
.2

(i
) 

 C
a

re
rs

’ 
e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 

re
tu

rn
e

rs
: 

•
 

M
in

im
is

e
 r

is
k

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
ili

ti
e

s
  

•
 

C
a

re
rs

’ 
a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
 w

o
rk

-r
e

la
te

d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 v

a
lid

a
te

d
 i

n
 c

a
re

r’
s

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

(s
e

lf
-a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 a

llo
c

a
ti

o
n

 u
n

d
e

r 
S

e
lf

-d
ir

e
c

te
d

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
) 

•
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 c
a
re
r’
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e

 (
o

r 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t)

 p
u

b
lic

is
e

d
 

to
 c

a
re

rs
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I1
3

5
 C

a
re

rs
 

re
c

e
iv

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s
 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

 
c

a
re

r’
s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
B

a
s

e
lin

e
 2

0
0

8
-9

 
2

2
.2

%
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 A
d

u
lt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 
D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

a
ti

o
n

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 

 

Page 331

Page 69



   
1

0
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 3
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 S
E
C
U
R
IT
Y
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le

 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
  

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 o
f 

c
a

re
d

 f
o

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

 a
n

d
 

c
a

re
r 

p
u

b
lic

is
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
re

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
  

•
 

B
ri

e
fi

n
g

s
 f

o
r 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
s

 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 
o

r 
h

a
ra

s
s

m
e

n
t 

3
.2

(i
i)

  
D

e
v

e
lo

p
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 J

o
b

c
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

 (
J

C
P

) 

•
 

R
e

c
ru

it
 t

h
e

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 

to
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
rs

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

 

•
 

C
la

ri
fy

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 c

a
re

rs
 i

n
 l

o
c

a
l 

J
o

b
c

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
 o

ff
ic

e
s

 

•
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
fl

e
x

ib
le

 j
o

b
 v

a
c

a
n

c
ie

s
 i

n
  

J
o

b
c

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
 j

o
b

 b
a

n
k

s
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

fl
e

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
n

d
 j

o
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 
v

ia
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
rs

 R
e

g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 o

n
-l

in
e

  
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
J

C
P

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

   

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 C

a
re

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

P
e

n
s

io
n

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

3
.2

 (
iii

) 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
a

d
u

lt
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

  

•
 

In
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

rs
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 A

d
u

lt
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

H
A

L
S

) 
 

A
s

s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

L
e

a
rn

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
, 

C
O

N
E

L
 

W
e

lf
a

re
 t

o
 W

o
rk

  
C

o
-

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

H
C

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 G

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 H
C

 

B
la

c
k

 a
n

d
 M

in
o

ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 
C

a
re

rs
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

3
.3
 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 o
f 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
h
o
 a
re
 c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

3
.3

(i
) 

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 w
h

o
 a

re
 c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

S
c

o
p

e
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

•
 

V
ir

tu
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 

b
u

d
d

y
 s

y
s

te
m

 o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 

•
 

Im
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

C
o

le
m

a
n

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 B

ill
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 r
a

ti
n

g
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
s

p
e

c
if

ic
 q

u
e

s
ti

o
n

 i
n

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
s

ta
ff

 s
u

rv
e

y
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

C
a

re
rs

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

H
R

 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
 

Page 332

Page 70



   
1

1
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 3
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 F
IN
A
N
C
IA
L
 S
E
C
U
R
IT
Y
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
fo
rc
e
d
 i
n
to
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
h
a
rd
s
h
ip
 b
y
 t
h
e
ir
 c
a
ri
n
g
 r
o
le

 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
/L
O
C
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
  

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

a
 C

a
re

rs
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y

e
e

s
 

•
 

‘C
a

re
r 

p
ro

o
fi

n
g

’(
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t)

 o
f 

H
R

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 

•
 

T
im

e
 o

ff
 w

it
h

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 w
h

o
 a

re
 c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il-

 
ru

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s

s
-r

a
is

in
g

 e
v

e
n

ts
 

(m
a

x
. 

2
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r)

 

•
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
v

it
a

ti
o

n
 v

ia
 p

a
y

 s
lip

s
 t

o
 c

a
re

rs
 t

o
 ‘

G
e

t 
c

o
n

n
e

c
te

d
’ 

 
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

 
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 

 

Page 333

Page 71



   
1

2
 

 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 4
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 W
E
L
L
-B
E
IN
G
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 m
e
n
ta
ll
y
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
ll
y
 w
e
ll
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 d
ig
n
it
y
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

4
.1
 C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
  
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
e
d
 c
a
re
rs
’ 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 c
e
n
tr
e
  

4
.1

 (
i)

 P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
s

p
e

c
if

ic
 

n
e

e
d

s
, 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 e
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
a
re
rs
; 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
, 
e
m
p
o
w
e
rm
e
n
t,
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t;
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

•
 

o
n

e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c

a
ll 

fo
r 

c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

  
in

c
re

a
s

e
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

•
 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 m

o
d

e
l 

•
 

s
e

lf
-o

rg
a

n
is

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

•
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
, 

s
ig

n
p

o
s

ti
n

g
, 

h
e

a
lt

h
 l

ia
is

o
n

 

•
 

c
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

  

•
 

ro
b

u
s

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
ta

k
e

 u
p

 a
n

d
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 

 W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
        

 N
I 

1
1

9
 S

e
lf

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

o
v

e
ra

ll 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
 8

0
%

 
        

 C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

        

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

  

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 f
ro

m
 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 
o

r 
h

a
ra

s
s

m
e

n
t 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
.2
 C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 e
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

4
.2

(i
) 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s

o
c

ia
l 

a
n

d
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
: 

p
e

e
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
g

ro
u

p
s

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

; 
p

a
m

p
e

ri
n

g
 d

a
y

s
, 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 t
h

e
ra

p
ie

s
, 

s
tr

e
s

s
 

b
u

s
ti

n
g

; 
re

g
u

la
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
u

ri
n

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e

ri
o

d
s

; 
p

re
-a

n
d

 p
o

s
t-

 
b

e
re

a
v

e
m

e
n

t 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
; 

 
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

N
I 

1
1

9
 S

e
lf

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

o
v

e
ra

ll 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
 8

0
%

 
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

A
C

C
S

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4
.3
 C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll
-b
e
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

 

4
.3

(i
) 

E
n

a
b

le
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

iv
in

g
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

, 
e

s
p

e
c

ia
lly

 f
re

e
 

a
n

d
 l

o
w

 c
o

s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

, 
a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
: 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 w

a
lk

s
 f

ro
m

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s

 

•
 

F
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 (

o
v

e
r 

6
0

s
),

 c
a

re
rs

’ 
d

is
c

o
u

n
ts

 o
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 l

e
is

u
re

 
c

e
n

tr
e

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 

•
 

R
e

la
x

a
ti

o
n

 c
la

s
s

e
s

 
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 N

I 
1

1
9

 S
e

lf
-r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

  
  

  
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

C
C

S
 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 o
v

e
ra

ll 
 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 2
0

0
8

-9
 8

0
%

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4
.4
 C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 p
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
n
s
e
ll
in
g
 

4
.4

 (
i)

 E
n

a
b

le
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

s
y

c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
N

I 
1

1
9

 S
e

lf
-r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

Page 334

Page 72



   
1

3
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 4
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 W
E
L
L
-B
E
IN
G
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 m
e
n
ta
ll
y
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
ll
y
 w
e
ll
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 d
ig
n
it
y
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

c
o

u
n

s
e

lli
n

g
: 

•
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 I

A
P

T
 (

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 P
s

y
c

h
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
T

h
e

ra
p

ie
s

),
 G

P
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

lo
w

 c
o

s
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

-b
a

s
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

 

•
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 C
R

U
S

E
 f

o
r 

b
e

re
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

u
n

s
e

lli
n

g
 

•
 

 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

m
e

a
s

u
re

s
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

o
v

e
ra

ll 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 

2
0

0
8

-9
 b

a
s

e
lin

e
 8

0
%

 

A
C

C
S

 

N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 

  

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
.5
 C
a
re
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
c
a
re
- 
g
iv
in
g

 

  
 4

.5
 (

i)
  

E
n

a
b

le
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 o

r 
c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

o
le

: 

•
 

M
o

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 H
a

n
d

lin
g

 

•
 

F
ir

s
t 

A
id

 

•
 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 

•
 

M
e

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

 

•
 

U
s

e
 o

f 
s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

•
 

C
a

ri
n

g
 w

it
h

 C
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e
/ 

E
x

p
e

rt
 P

a
ti

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
 

 

W
it

h
in

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I1
2

7
 S

e
lf

-r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

e
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 o

f 
s

o
c

ia
l 

c
a

re
 u

s
e

rs
 

N
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
ill

 e
n

d
 

o
f 

2
0

0
9

-1
0

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

C
C

S
 

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 4
.6
  
C
a
re
rs
 a
re
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
n
d
  
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

4
.7

 (
i)

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
rs

 b
y

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 
(i

n
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 “

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 C
a

re
rs

: 
A

n
 a

c
ti

o
n

 g
u

id
e

 f
o

r 
g

e
n

e
ra

l 
p

ra
c

ti
ti

o
n

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 t
e

a
m

s
” 

2
0

0
8

 R
C

G
P

) 

•
 

L
e

a
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

fo
r 

c
a

re
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

(N
H

S
 H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

) 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

’ 
c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 –

o
n

 P
C

T
 a

n
d

 T
ru

s
t 

B
o

a
rd

s
, 

in
 G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri

e
s

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ra
c

ti
c

e
 n

u
rs

e
s

, 
p

ro
fe

s
s

io
n

a
ls

 a
lli

e
d

 t
o

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 
re

c
e

p
ti

o
n

is
ts

 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v

ic
e

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 i

n
 a

c
u

te
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
s

e
tt

in
g

s
 

•
 

Id
e

n
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 c

o
-c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

E
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

G
P

s
’ 

c
a

re
rs

 r
e

g
is

te
rs

 

•
 

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
p

ra
c

ti
c

e
 n

u
rs

e
s

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 c
a

re
rs

 

•
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 c

h
e

c
k

 f
o

r 
c

a
re

rs
 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

re
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

s
 

•
 

C
a

re
 p

a
s

s
p

o
rt

s
 (

le
t 

c
a

re
rs

 h
e

lp
 c

a
re

d
-f

o
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 e

x
p

re
s

s
 t

h
e

ir
 

c
a

re
 n

e
e

d
s

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

e
y

 c
a

n
 s

h
a

re
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

c
a

re
r)

 

W
it

h
in

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
N

I 
1

1
9

 S
e

lf
-r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

  
B

a
s

e
lin

e
 2

0
0

8
-9

 8
0

%
 

 N
H

S
 Q

u
a

lit
y

 M
a

rk
e

rs
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
G

ro
u

p
: 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

 
A

C
C

S
 

D
e

p
u

ty
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 P

ra
c

ti
c

e
-

b
a

s
e

d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 A

c
u

te
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

in
g

, 
N

H
S

 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

  

A
s

s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

, 
A

d
u

lt
s

 a
n

d
 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
, 

N
H

S
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

C
a

re
r 

re
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

, 
C

a
re

rs
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
 

 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 

 Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 
q

u
a

lit
y

 o
f 

lif
e

  

In
c

re
a

s
e

d
 

c
h

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 

Page 335

Page 73



   
1

4
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 4
: 
C
A
R
E
R
S
 W
E
L
L
-B
E
IN
G
 

C
a
re
rs
 w
il
l 
b
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 s
ta
y
 m
e
n
ta
ll
y
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
ll
y
 w
e
ll
 a
n
d
 t
re
a
te
d
 w
it
h
 d
ig
n
it
y
 

K
E
Y
 I
N
IT
IA
T
IV
E
S
 

R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 

N
A
T
IO
N
A
L
 

IN
D
IC
A
T
O
R
 

2
0
0
9
-2
0
1
2
 

L
E
A
D
 

W
B
S
F
 

O
U
T
C
O
M
E
 

•
 

F
le

x
ib

le
 u

s
e

 o
f 

te
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y

 e
.g

. 
h

o
m

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
a

re
r 

p
a

th
w

a
y

s
 

  

         

Page 336

Page 74



At a glance 10

Personalisation briefing

Key messages

Personalisation for carers means:

What are the implications for 
carers?

July 2009

Implications for carers

Page 75



Personalisation briefing: Implications for carers

At a glance 10

2

Personalisation in relation to the 

support provided to the person you 

are looking after
Everyone is entitled to an assessment of their 

Making sure personalisation is 

working for your situation
  Decide what outcomes you both want

different needs within the family that have to 

Example: Olu

Page 76



Personalisation briefing: Implications for carers

At a glance 10

3

Example: deciding on 
outcomes

  In some cases, it will be important to think 
how the care needs of the person you are 
looking after and your own needs might 
change over time and how this will affect 
what services you both need

  Are you being involved in the discussions 
about personalisation and the package of 
care for the person you are looking after?

  If the person you are looking after is 
unable to manage making decisions about 
buying in care, etc, are you able to manage 
this?

If you are taking on managing budgets, are 
they being properly resourced so that you 
can do this?

Example: carer involvement

Page 77



Personalisation briefing: Implications for carers

At a glance 10

4

Personalisation in relation to the 

support provided for you as a carer

Example: June

Page 78



Personalisation briefing: Implications for carers

At a glance 10

5

Contacts:

Further information

Carers UK

Counsel and Care 

s:

Elderly Accommodation Counsel 

Care Quality Commission 

Acknowledgements

Example: Rahilah

Page 79



Personalisation briefing: Implications for carers

At a glance 10

Social Care

Institute for Excellence

Personalisation: a rough guide 

Page 80



CARERS GRANT 2008-2011 

GUIDANCE

Page 81



DH  INFORMATION  READER  BOX

Policy Estates

HR / Workforce Commissioning

Management IM & T

Planning / Finance

Clinical Social Care / Partnership Working

Document Purpose Best Practice Guidance

ROCR Ref: 0 Gateway Ref: 9293

Title

Author

Publication Date

Target Audience

Circulation List

Description

Cross Ref

Superseded Docs

Action Required

Timing

Contact Details

For Recipient's Use

Carers Grant 2008-2011

SE1 8UG

0

020 7972 4723

Gail Elkington

SCLG & P

Room 119

Wellington House, 133-155 Waterloo Road, London

0

DH/SCLG & P

N/A

0

Carers Grant Guidance 2006-07 and 2007-08

11 Jan 2008

Directors of Adult SSs, Directors of Children's SSs

#VALUE!

This good practice guidance is issued every year along with monies to enable 

councils to support carers.  Precisely how they do this is monitiored by the 

Commission for Social care Inspection

0

N/A

0

N/A

Page 82



CARERS GRANT 2008-2011  

GUIDANCE

Summary 

1. The carers grant will be paid as part of the new Area Based Grant 
from April 2008.  This is a new non-ringfenced general grant.  As 
such local authorities are able to determine locally how best to 
spend the Grant in order to deliver local and national priorities in 
their areas.   Local authorities, Voluntary Organisations and carers 
can identify the level of funding specifically allocated in recognition 
of the need for carer support in Area Based Grant on the CLG 
local government finance settlement website - 
http://www.local.odpm.gov.uk/finance/0809/specgrant.htm.  

2. In 2008/09, the contribution to Area Based Grant  for carer 
support will increase to £224 million.  This contribution is intended 
to enable local authorities to continue to develop innovative and 
personalised outcomes reflecting the needs of their local carer 
population. It will rise to £240m in 2009/10 and £256m in 
£1010/11. These sums include £25m each year in recognition of 
the need to ensure councils have the means to provide 
emergency cover when carers are suddenly unable to care. This 
was first paid as a separate sum in October 2007.  

3. The Area Based Grant will be paid as a non-ringfenced general 
grant. The contribution for carers support has been allocated 
using the following criteria: 20% has been allocated using the 
children’s formula, to support parent carers and to ensure young 
carers do not take on an inappropriate caring role; 24% has been 
allocated using the adults' (18-64) Formula Spending Share (FSS) 
formula; and, 56% using the older people's FSS formula 

4. The Area Based Grant will be paid under section 31 of the Local 
Government Act 2003. Local authorities will be paid in single 
monthly instalments from CLG, as outlined in the recently 
published Local Area Agreement Operational Guidance1.

5. Whilst there are no conditions attached to the Carers Grant 
money for 2008/09, the CSCI Self Assessment Survey will 
continue to monitor the provision of services to support carers. 
The approach to carers set out in the Social Care Concordat 
‘Putting People First’ should be reflected in the development of 
any services and policies. Therefore, the information in this 
guidance is important and councils should note well the contents 
of this circular.  

1
 http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/laaoperationalguidance 

Page 83



Background 

6. The contribution to Area Based Grant for carer support forms part 
of the Government's strategy for carers, originally set out in 
Caring about Carers published in 1999. It has previously been 
used by councils to stimulate diversity and flexibility in provision of 
breaks for carers and/or direct services to carers to support them 
in their caring role.

Policy Intentions

7. The Government’s objective is to build on the expertise achieved 
in commissioning carer support and encourage councils to 
continue developing personalised, innovative and high quality 
carers services in response to local needs. This should be done in 
partnership with carers, relevant voluntary organisations, the local 
NHS and other statutory agencies. In particular to:  

 set up systems to ensure carers can have immediate access 
to alternative support in an emergency or crisis situation. 
Examples of ways councils might achieve this are found at 
Annex A;

 provide planned breaks for carers who provide substantial 
and regular care to a 'relevant adult' who lives at home.  
Examples of ways councils might achieve this are also found 
at Annex A; 

 provide planned breaks for disabled children and their 
families under part 3 of the Children Act 1989;  

 provide support such that young carers do not take on an 
inappropriate level of care

 support children and young people (under 18) who are 
carers in having a break from caring;

 fund voluntary organisations to provide breaks directly on the 
basis of their own assessments. Level of commissioning of 
voluntary organisations should be determined by local need 
and reflect stakeholders views. 

 facilitate carers networks and support groups 

8. The definition of a breaks service can be found at Annex B. 

9. In addition, councils may also seek to: 

 develop pragmatic, outcome focused approaches to the 
carers assessment, integrated with the development of the 

Page 84



Single Assessment Process and promotion of joint working 
with health services; 

 focus on the needs of carers, which is often the most 
effective way to prevent loss of independence. In line with 
Fair Access to Care Services, local authorities should ensure 
no assumptions are made that caring roles can be sustained 
without assessment and the possibility of support for the 
carer. For further information Quality Standards for Local 
Carer Support Services was published by the Department of 
Health in February 2000; 

 fund administration relating to local carers strategies and 
consultation with carers; 

 agree a plan with stakeholders to ensure the grant is spent 
on locally agreed priorities; 

 implement the provisions of the impact of the Carers (Equal 
Opportunities) Act 2004. 

10. In addition to those services described, councils can develop 
other ways to respond imaginatively to requests for diversity in 
service provision for carers.

Carers' Services

11. It is recognised that the results of a carer's assessment will 
usually be the provision of community care services to the service 
user. Such community care services should be as flexible as 
possible and take the needs of both parties into account as far as 
possible.

12. Where sustainability of the carer’s role is dependent on other 
factors local councils could chose to fund Carers and Disabled 
Children Act 2000 carers' services for carers. Examples might 
include driving lessons, moving and handling classes or a short 
holiday for the carer to enable them to have time to themselves.

13. Local authorities could also consider supporting carers’ wellbeing 
through opportunities that might not involve a conventional breaks 
service. Examples might include funding courses to support 
carers to move on to new learning and/or work or volunteering 
opportunities. This might include help with confidence building and 
skills.

14. Local authorities must consider the Carers (Equal Opportunities) 
Act 2004 which came into force in April 2005. The Act seeks to 
give carers more choice and better opportunities to lead a more 
fulfilling life by ensuring that carers receive information about their 

Page 85



rights under the Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000. It also 
ensures that carers’ assessments consider leisure, education, 
training and work activities, and provides for co-operation between 
local authorities and other bodies, including housing, education 
and health, in relation to the planning and provision of services 
that are relevant to carers.

15. In recognition of the need to work across health and social care 
boundaries councils could consider using some of the money to 
employ a carers’ development worker. This would help to develop 
carers’ services locally and in particular, links to the NHS. This 
could be done through a pooled budget arrangement, which would 
establish a firmer basis for partnership working. Recruitment to 
such a post should be done in consultation with local 
stakeholders.

Emergency Cover 

16. This section of the guidance relates directly to the £25m made 
available to local authorities in England from 1 October 2007 
which has been paid in addition to the Carers’ Grant. This 
additional contribution to Area Based Grant has been allocated in 
recognition of the need for services to provide emergency cover 
for unpaid carers who, for reasons of an emergency or personal 
crisis are unable for a short period to continue to provide care. 
The policy was first signalled in Our health, our care, our say in 
January 2006 and formally announced as part of the New Deal for 
Carers on 21 February 2007.  

17. There is considerable evidence that one of the factors that limited 
carers’ freedom to have any life of their own was the worry about 
what would happen if they became ill or if they were involved in an 
accident. Many carers have told Carers UK they did not take 
unnecessary journeys and frequently missed out on attending 
family events because of the worry of not being able to get home 
on time, or of being caught up in an accident. They were worried 
that there would be no one to look after the person they cared for.

18. The policy intention is that short-term, home-based, emergency 
cover is established in each council to provide support in crisis or 
emergency situations. The outcome of the initiative is to provide 
reassurance and confidence for the carer that should anything 
happen to them to prevent them providing care at very short 
notice, then alternative care can be provided. Wherever possible, 
this should take place in the cared for person’s home and cover 
the time the usual carer is unavailable or at least provide sufficient 
time to make alternative arrangements.

19. The guidance that follows sets out the principles which authorities 
may wish to take into account in building their emergency cover 

Page 86



provisions. It does not attempt to describe an ideal model since it 
will be up to each authority to establish that which best reflects the 
needs of the carers in their locality and fits in best with their own 
local service provision. However, there are four examples of good 
practice described below which serve to illustrate what an 
effective service model might look like.

20. This additional £25m was allocated in recognition of the pressures 
on local authorities to provide emergency cover for all carers, 
including parent carers and young carers. In the case of a parent 
who is temporarily unable to look after their disabled child, the 
grant may be used to provide alternative care for other children in 
the family during a crisis. In such circumstances the arrangements 
should aim at ensuring that the children remain together.

Definitions

21. As with planned support for carers, short breaks apply in the case 
of those providing substantial and regular care.

22. To some extent, local judgment will be needed to determine what 
constitutes an emergency. However, the following are clear 
examples of an emergency for which these provisions could 
apply:

 Carer’s admission to hospital or other health needs which 
preclude him or her from continuing to provide care; 

 Family emergency such as a close relative being taken ill 
and requiring help/attention; 

 Real risk to the carer’s employment on a particular occasion; 

  Funeral of a close friend or relative  

Core Principles 

23. There should be clearly understood means of communicating with 
agencies in the event of an emergency of crisis. This might be a 
single phone number which the carer the cared for person or a 
health and social care professional can ring. 

24. Consideration should be given to providing systems which clearly 
identifies when people are carers – e.g. cards which would include 
contact numbers in case of an emergency.

25. Planned care arrangements can be put in place at short notice 
which will last for at least 48 hours while longer term 
arrangements can be made if necessary (but emergency cover 
should be capable of being sustained until either the carer returns 
or where necessary longer term alternative arrangements can be 
put in place).

Page 87



26. The carer, and where possible the care user, should be a full 
partner in the development of the care arrangement plans.

27. The care arrangement plans should be based on the needs of the 
carer and the person being cared for and be updated regularly, 
initially as part of the carers’ assessment and subsequently at the 
review of that assessment. Assessments for emergency cover 
should include an assessment of risks. 

28. The care arrangement plans should take account of the 
individual’s needs as a whole including social and emotional 
needs as well as their medical needs, and in the case of children, 
their educational needs.

29. The care arrangement planning should involve all key agencies, 
including health and third sector partners and take account of the 
care that is currently being provided by those agencies.  

30. Care arrangement plans should be held in a readily accessible 
format so that they can be put in place 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week. The electronic social care record may be an appropriate 
place for these plans.

31. One set of contingencies may not be sufficient, particularly where 
the care arrangement plan involves the participation of friends and 
or relatives. In these circumstances it is suggested that there are 
three options available and the need for this is fully explained to 
the carer.

32.  In developing the care arrangement plans for emergency cover, 
authorities should have regard to disability, culture, ethnicity, 
gender, sexuality and religious beliefs for the carers and of those 
for whom they care.

33.  There should be no charge for the temporary cover. 

Payment of the Area Based Grant

34. Communities and Local Government, as the agent for Area Based 
Grant, will issue a grant determination for the total Area Based 
Grant to be paid to local authorities.  Individual authorities will then 
receive their payments of Area Based Grant in one single monthly 
payment from CLG. 

Guidance and publications on carers' Issues

Page 88



35. Further information, in particular, the combined Guidance on the 
Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000 and Carers (Equal 
Opportunities) Act 2004, is on the Department of Health website.

Enquiries

36. Any enquiries should be addressed to: Social Care Policy and 
Innovation,

Department of Health, Room 119 Wellington House, 133-155 
Waterloo Road, LONDON SE1 8UG E-mail: SCPI-Enquiries 
@dh.gsi.gov.uk

Page 89



ANNEX A

Emergency Cover - Four examples of good practice

Sefton Carers Emergency Respite Team (CERT): Princess Royal Trust 
for Carers, Sefton Carers Centre
Sefton Council commissions Sefton Carers Centre to provide the Carers 
Emergency Respite Team. The service provides home-based respite support 
to carers in crisis or emergency situations for a period of up to 48 hours. 
During the 48 hour period the team can provide a series of ‘pop in’ calls or, if 
necessary, will arrange a total move in to support the person being cared for.  

An important feature of the service is the advanced care planning which is 
carried out when a carer registers with the service, so that everyone in the 
team is clear about the individual’s needs and support that would be required 
in an emergency. The care plan includes an exit strategy, which considers 
how support will continue to be provided beyond the 48 hour period if this is 
required. Typically, the exit strategy will include the carer’s network of support, 
and if this is limited, the service links in with the local authority social services 
department.

The London Borough of Merton (Merton) 
Merton provides a partnership-based solution to deliver an emergency 
response service. They commission Carers Support Merton, Mascott (telecare 
services) and Merton Crossroads – Caring for Carers, to provide the scheme.

Initial contact to the scheme is via Carers Support Merton who provide the 
carer’s alert card. This process initiates the essential planning element 
required for any emergency response. The card is carried by the carer and 
gives the 24-hour telephone number run by Mascott. In an emergency anyone 
using the card can contact Mascot who keep the details of the person the 
carer has nominated to provide care for the cared for in this situation and 
contact them to alert them of the situation. The nominated person can be a 
relative, friend or neighbour.  

However not all carers have a nominated carer or one that can attend 
immediately or for the whole time that the emergency exists. Merton 
Crossroads are therefore commissioned to provide care for the cared for in 
the short term during the emergency until more permanent arrangements can 
be made. 

 This short-term emergency home-based care is provided for periods up to 
48hrs and during this time long-term arrangements can be developed if 
necessary.
Merton Crossroads provide an on call care support worker 24hours a day, 
seven days a week, who can in an emergency provide pop in calls, 
substantial care hours or a total move in for a period of 48 hours. The home-

Page 90



based service is designed to either replace the carer in total or support the 
nominated person in their caring role. The service is an extension of the 
respite care service already provided by Merton Crossroads and supports 
carers who are unable to continue in their normal caring role due to sudden 
injury, illness or unplanned hospital admission. 

The London Borough of Lewisham (Lewisham)
In Lewisham, the local authority and the Carers’ Centre have worked in 
partnership to ensure that there is a comprehensive response to carers’ 
needs both for urgent help and to deal with real emergencies.

All carers in touch with the centre are given a “Coping with Emergencies” 
leaflet which explains how they can get help in an emergency. There are 3 
mechanisms available:  

 An emergency card for carers who want to have one – this gives 
information about the carer and cared-for with contact details of 
relatives/friends who could help in an emergency.  

 The Carers’ Centre manages a pot of money (funded through the 
Carers’ Grant) which staff can use flexibly to buy in occasional 
domiciliary care support for carers. Help can be provided at short 
notice where members of staff are aware of an urgent need for support.

 In emergency situations where neither of the above are applicable, the 
council responds by arranging appropriate care for the cared-for 
person – either in the home or through residential placements. This 
includes a responsive out of hours service – the Carers’ Centre has 
helped raise awareness of carers’ issues amongst emergency staff 
who receive calls. 

Warwickshire County Council (WCC) 
WCC has tendered out a combined emergency and planned respite service 
known as "In Your Place". The service is provided by Direct Health UK in the 
north of the county and Allied Healthcare in the south.

The emergency service can be in place within two hours and provides home-
based cover for up to 72 hours. During this period the service provides a live-
in support worker who aims to ensure that normal routines continue. Carers 
can register for the service which entails completing a comprehensive 
emergency care plan which includes details of the normal daily and weekly 
routines, visitors who may call, usual activities, pet care, etc. The service can 
be extended beyond 72 hours if necessary. Arrangements can be made to 
secure ongoing support as appropriate through direct links to WCC's Adult 
Social Care Teams.  

The planned part of the service can be used as an alternative, or to 
complement, short-term residential provision. It typically provides support from 
6-72 hours and has been helpful in enabling carers to access educational 

Page 91



courses, attend family functions, and generally take longer breaks without 
having to resort to residential care. An advantage of combining the two 
schemes is the greater level of familiarity which can be developed between 
the carer and cared for and the support staff which can be helpful in the event 
of an emergency.

Planned Support for Carers - Examples of Innovative Practice

Joint working between health and social care
Much research on carers’ health shows the huge negative impact caring has 
on their health.  Councils may wish to combine PCT funding with matched 
funding from the Area Based Grant and provide a practice nurse for carers 
who is based across a number of GP practices.  GPs and health and social 
care professionals can all refer carers direct to the carers nurse. 

A carers nurse can do much to alleviate the problems of poor physical and 
emotional health. They can play a role in the prevention of poor health by 
monitoring key indicators of health (blood pressure, weight, smoking habits, 
physical activity, diet and lifestyle) and arrange training for carers such as 
moving and handling and managing medication.  Another important aspect is 
emotional support for carers and signposting to other agencies where this is 
necessary.

Extended/flexible opening hours 
Extending the hours of opening of day centres at both ends of the day would 
enable carers who are in paid work to be able to benefit from the day centre 
opening before they go to work and remaining open until they return home. 
Clients attending these centres could have their breakfast where they arrive 
early and have a late tea where their carers arrange for their going home 
later.  This service would ensure continuity of support since the clients would 
already be known to the staff. 

Utilising existing communal spaces
Rural carers frequently have difficulty finding and accessing resources that 
give them a break.  Existing resources, such as public houses, could host a 
group of cared for people which, along with a paid care worker, would enable 
them to have a change of scene, meet others and partake of activities whilst 
giving their carers a break.

Assistive technology
Carers who feel unable to go far from the home because of their caring 
responsibilities can benefit greatly from the use of assistive technology.
Various pieces of equipment can be purchased as a carers’ service which will 
enable them to spend some time out in the garden, or indeed a short distance 
from the home and still be contacted by the person they care for or alerted if 
their relative is in distress or difficulty.   

Befriending Services
Some individuals would benefit from a group model where people with similar 

Page 92



needs are offered a befriender to supervise and support an activity chosen by 
the group whilst their carers take a break. In addition, the model identifies 
those people with specific needs who would also benefit from one to one 
support.

Carers Leads 
Carers leads within assessment teams can ensure that all team members 
who carry out community care assessments can also assess carers.  This 
approach can help to prioritise the carers agenda locally and give 
professionals the opportunity to gain knowledge and an expertise in the 
practice of assessing and supporting carers. Similarly, good practice can be 
disseminated and developed further by these staff.

Page 93



ANNEX B 

Definition of breaks services 

A 'breaks service' is one which actually gives the carer a break from direct 
responsibility of supervising or caring for the relevant person by providing a 
service to that person. 

A breaks service must always aim to provide a positive experience for the 
service user as well as a break for the carer. 

Services provided in an emergency, such as when a carer is hospitalised, or 
simply to allow the carer to visit the doctor or dentist, should not be regarded 
as a breaks service but as a core element of supporting the cared for person 
and carer. Breaks should be about carers having some time for themselves. 

Local councils are referred to the Carers and Disabled Children Act 2000 and 
Carers (Equal Opportunities) Act 2004 Combined Policy Guidance available 
on the department of health website.

Young carers' breaks services 

Where the carer is a child, a service which helps the child to take part in 
activities
outside the home, so that they can truly benefit from such a break, is also a 
breaks service. 

In line with existing guidance on young carers, breaks should be provided as 
part of a package of services that makes sure that: 

• services are provided to parents to enhance their ability to fulfil their 
parenting
responsibilities

• young carers are not expected to carry inappropriate levels of caring which 
may have an adverse impact on their development and life chances 

• children do not take on similar levels of caring responsibilities to adults. 

Voucher schemes 

Guidance on voucher schemes is available on the Government web-site for 
carers (www.carers.gov.uk).

Page 94


	Agenda
	6 Scoping report
	Appendix A - Haringey Adult Carers Strategy
	Appendix B - Haringey Adult Carers Strategy_Delivery Plan
	Appendix C - SCIE_Carers Personalisation Briefing
	Appendix D - DoH_Carers Grant 2008-2011


